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VNSTEEL —- VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Zone, Street No. 9, An Binh Ward, Bien

VNSTEEL Hoa, Dong Nai
VICASA Tel: 02513836148 - 3836090; Fax: 0251.3836505
Website: www.vicasasteel.com

No: 01/BB-BHDCB-VCA Bien Hoa, 2025-04-09

MINUTES OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Today, at 08:00 on 2025-04-09, at the office of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock
Company, business registration code: 36009617621, address: Bien Hoa 1 Indusirial Park,
Street No. 9, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, the annual meeting of
the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) in 2025 of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Company was held with the following details:
Participanis:
1. Mr. Le Song Lai - Sccretary of the Party Committee, Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Vietnam Steel Corporation - 1SC
2. Mr. Nghiem Xuan Da - Board of Directors” members, General Director of Vietnam
Steel Corporation — JSC
3. Mr. Neuyen Xuan Son - Chairman of the Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA
Joint Stock Company
4. Mr. Ngo Tien Tho - Board of Directors” members, General Director of VNSTEEL -
VICASA Joint Stock Company
Along with the Board of Directors’ members; Members of the Board of Supervisors and
Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company attended.

PART I: INTRODUCTION TO THE OPENING OF THE MEETING

I. Repori on checking the eligibility of delegates:

- Reporter; Mr. Vu Hong Khanh - Head of the Delegate Eligibility Check Committee,

- Content of report:
+ Total number of sharcholders invited to attend: All sharcholders named in the
sharcholder list finalized as of 2025-03-10, owning 15,187,322 shares with voting
rights of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company.
+ As of 08:15 on 2023-04-09, the number of delegates attending the CGeneral
Meeting: 25 delegates, representing 11,062,657 votes, accounting for 72 _8414% of
the tolal number of votes of all shareholders with voting rights,
+ According to the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter, the Annual
General Meeting of Sharcholders in 2025 of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock
Company is eligible to hold the General Meeting.
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II. Introduction of the Presiding Board, Secretary Board, and Vote Counting
Committee
Presiding Board:

- Mr, Nguyen Xuan Son, Chairperson of the Board of Directors, Chairperson
- Mr. Ngo Tien Tho, Board of Directors’ member, General Director, Member
- Mr. Nguyen Van Thoan, Board of Directors’ member, Member

Secretariat:

- Mr. Ho Duy Khai, Secretary of the Board of Directors, TCHC Department Head

- Mr. Le Van Hiep, Specialist of Finance-Accounting Department Member

Vote Connting Committee:

- Ma. Truong Thi Kim Anh, Deputy Head of Admin Department, Head

- Mr. Vu Hong Khanh, Deputy General Director, Member

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Ngoc Thanh, Deputy Head of Finance-Accounting Department,
Member

‘The General Meeting conducted a public vote and unanimously approved 100% of the list of
the Presiding Board, the Secretary Board, and the Vote Counting Committee.

IMl. Introduction of the General Meeting program and working regulations at the
General Meeting
Mr, Vu Hong Khanh: On behalf of the organizing committee, presented the Program and
Working Regulations of the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders in 20235. _
- The General Meeting conducted a public vote and unanimously approved 100% of the /{J’:J @
General Meeting Program. P e
- The General Meeting conducted a public vote and unanimously approved 100% of the | "r ‘{ i

General Meeting Program. < T
Detailed voting results for the following contents: approved the Presiding Board, " 8

Secretary Board, Vote countling committee, General Meeting Program, Working N\@; -
regulations at the General Meeting as follows: iy
From the opening time until 08:40, the number of delegates attending the General Meeting;

25 delegates, representing 11,062,657 voting shares, accounting for 72.8414% of the total

nuimber of voting shares of all shareholders with voting rights.

Voting results:

Total number of valid voting ballots: 25 delegates, representing 11,062,657 voting shares,
accounting for 100% of the total number of voting shares of shareholders attending the

meeling, in which:

* Total pumber of voting ballots in favor: 25 delepates, representing 11,062,657 voting shares,
accounting for 100% of the total number of voting shares attending the meeting.

= Total number of voting ballots against: 0 representing: () voting shares, accounting for: 0%

of the total number of voting shares attending the meeting,

» Total number of voting ballots with no opinion: 0, representing: 0 voting shares, accounting

for: %4 of the total number of voling shares attending the meeting.

VA Mimites of the Ammiral General Meeting of Shoreholders in 20235 Fage 214



PART II: GENERAL MEETING CONTENT

% t1: Re

ults of ueti

orientations for production and business tasks in 20235

1. Production and business results in 2024: Some key indicators are as follows

Total number of invalid voting ballots: 0 representing: () voting shares, accounting for: 0% of
the total number of voting shares attending the meeting,

iness activities in 2024 and

Presenter; My, Neo Tien Tho — Member of the Board of Directors, General Director

Percenta Percentag
Year 2024
 Indicator Unit :F;;‘; ge % e %
Plan Implement compare jcompared
od d to the to the
previous [2024 plan
yvear
1. Production
a. Steel billet: Tons | 124,953 110,000 [ 103 498 &2.83 o4 (9
b. Rolled steel: Tons | 94,361 UE.000 #1,843 86.73 83.51
2. Consumption
Rolled steefTons| o3 6on | ogoo0| s2,508 | 8808 84,19
| consumption
Steel billeq T
¢ s ons | 29795 | 20,000 19,183 6438 | 9592
consumption
3. revenue Billio
1 1,725 1,783 1,358 78.72 76.16
VDD
| = = R.942 8.000 1.047 11.71 13,08
VYND
5. dividends b - - - - -
2. Production and business plan for 2025: Some key indicators are as follows
. Implemented Implemented Plan
Indicato Unit | 'MP P
e vear 2023 | vear2024 | vear 2025
Steelmaking Production Tons 124,953 103,498 150,000
| Rolled Steel Production Tons 9d,36] 81,843 103,000
Rolled steel Tons 093,672 82,508 105,000
consumplion
Fage 3714
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Profit before tax Billion 8942 1.047 | 5.000
VIND

Content 2: Report on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024
Presenter: Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son ~ Chairman of the Board of Directors

Content 3; Evaluation report of independent Board of Directors members in 2024

Presenter: Mr, Neuven Xuan Son — Chairman of the Board of Directors

Content 4: 2024 financial statements independently audited
Presenter: Mr. Tran Van Nhon — Head of the TCKT Department

Content 5: Report on the activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024
Presenter: Mr. Nguven Phuoe Hei — Head of the Supervisors

Mr. Nguven Xuan Son, on behall of the Chairperson, requested the General Meeting's opinion
on updating the Submission for the dismissal of members of the Board of Directors for the
2023 - 2028 term. The General Meeting conducted a public vote and unanimously approved
100% the updating of the Submission for the dismissal of members of the Board of Directors
for the 2023 - 2028 term.

Detailed voting results for the contents: approval of updating the Submission for the
dismissal of members of the Board of Directors for the 2023-2028 term as follows:

From the opening time until 09:15, the number of delegates attending the General Meeting;
26 delegates, representing 11,065,807 voting shares, accounting for 72.8622% of the total
number of voting shares of all shareholders with voting rights,

Voting results: \
Total number of valid voting ballots: 26 representing: 11,065,807 voting shares, accounting
for: 100% of the total number of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting, in
which; =
+ Total number of voting ballots in favor: 26 representing: 11,065,807 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares attending the meeting,

+ Total number of voting ballots against: 0 representing: 0 voling shares, accounting for: 0%

of the total number of voting shares attending the meeting.

» Total number of voting ballots with no opinion: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting

for: 0% of the total number of voting shaves attending the meeting.

Total number of invalid voting ballots: 0 representing: () voting shares, accounting for: (9 of

the total number of voting shares present at the meeting,

Content 6: Proposal on profit distribution and appropriation of funds for 2024.
Presenter: My, Neuyen Xuan Son — Chairman aof the Board of Directors

A

L e

Cont : osal for the business uction and profit plan [

Presenter: Mr. Neuyen Xuan Son — Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Content 8: Proposal for the profit distribution plan and appropriation of funds
for 2025

Presenier: Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son — Chairman of the Board of Directors
Content 9: Proposal on salaries and remuneration of the Board of Directors,

Board of Supervisors, General Director, Deputy General Directors, and Chiefl

Accountant for 2025
Presenter: Mr. Newuyven Xuan Son — Chairperson of the Board of Direclors
Content 10: Proposal _for the selection of the financial statement auditing

company for 2025,
Presenter: Mr. Neuyen Xuan Son — Chairperson of the Board of Dirvectors

Content 11: Proposal for transactions between the Company and related parties
of shareholders owning 51% or more of the total number of voting shares.

Presenter; Mr. Neuyen Xuan Son — Chairperson of the Board of Direciors

Content 12:; Proposal for the dismissal of m rs of the Company's f

Directors for the term of 2023 - 2028
Presenter: Mr. Nguyven Xuan Son — Chairperson,

Content 13: Proposal for the additional election of members to the Company’s
Board of Directors for the term of 2023-2028
Pregenter: Mr. Neuyen Xuan Son — Chairperson.

Content 14: Proposal for the dismissal of members of the Company's Board of
Supervisors for the term of 2023 - 2028

Presenter: Mr. Neuyen Xuan Son — Chairperson,

Content 15: Proposal for the additional election of members to the Company’s
Board of Supervisors for the term of 2023-2028

Presenter: Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son — Chairperson

PART IIl. SHAREHOLDERS' COMMENTS

After listening to the proposals for secking opinions from the General Meeting, the
Company's General Meeting of Shareholders proceeded to discuss, agreed with the Proposals,
and had no comments.

Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son, on behalf of the Chairperson delegation, requested opinions from the
General Assembly regarding the updating of the Proposal for additional election of members
to the Board of Directors for the term of 2023 — 2028 and the Regulation on nomination,
candidacy, and election of additional members to the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors for the term of 2023 -2028.

The General Assembly conducted an open voling and unanimously approved 100% the
updating of the Proposal for additional election of members to the Board of Dircctors for the
term of 2023 — 2028 and the Regulation on nomination, candidacy, and election of additional
members to the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors for the term of 2023 -2028,
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Detailed voting results for the Content: Updating the Proposal for additional election of
members to the Board of Directors for the term of 2023 — 2028 and the Regulation on
nomination, candidacy, and election of additional members 1o the Board of Directors, Board
of Supervisors for the term of 2023 -2028:
From the opening time to 09:38, the number of delegates attending the General Meeling; 27
delegates, representing 11065812 voting ballot, accounting for 72.8622% of the total number
of voting ballot of all sharcholders with voting rights.
WVoting results:
Total number of valid voting ballot; 27 representing: 11065812 voting ballot, accounting for:
100% of the total number of voting ballot of shareholders attending the meeting, in which:
» Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting ballot, accounting lor:
100% of the total number of voting ballot present at the meeting.
« Total number of ballots against: 0 representing: 0 voting ballot, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting ballot present at the meeting.
» Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0 representing: 0 voting ballot, accounting for: 0%
of the total number of voting ballot present at the meeting.
Teotal number of invalid ballots: 0 representing: 0 voting ballot, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting ballot present at the meeting.

PART IV. SHAREHOLDER VOTING

Update on the delegate eligibility review report:

Mr. Vu Hong Khanh - Head of the Delegate Eligibility Verification Committee
reported an updated review of delegate eligibility to attend. Specifically: As of 09:42
AM, the number of delegates attending the General Meeting: 27 delegates,
representing 11,063,812 voting ballots, accounting for 72.8622% of the total number
of voting ballots of all shareholders with voling rights.

Statistics on the number of ballots issued, the number of ballots collected, and the
number of ballots not collected:

- Total number of ballots issued: 27, representing 11,065,812 voting ballots,
accounting for 100% of the total number of voting ballots of shareholders attending the
meeting.

- Total number of ballots collected: 27, representing 11,065,812 voting ballots,
accounting for 100% of the total number of voting ballots of sharcholders attending the
meeting.

- Total number of ballots not collécted: 0, representing 0 voting ballots, accounting for
0% of the total number of voting ballots of sharcholders attending the mecting.

The General Meeting will hear presentations and vote by secret ballot on the following
contents:

Voting results

1. Content 1: Summary report on production and business activities in
2024 and tasks of the production and business plan for 2025
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¥ Voting results

Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:

« Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11065812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voiing shares present at the meefing,

« Total number of ballots against: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for:
of the total number of voting shares present al the mecting.

o Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing () voting shares, aceounfing
for: 0% of the total mumber of voting shares present at the meeting.

Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

¥ Thus: Content 1 was approved with a rate of 100%.

2. Content 2: Report on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024
# Voling results
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders aitending the meeting, of which:

« Total number of ballots in fovor: 27 represemting: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total mumber of voting shares present at the meeling,

- Total number aof ballots against: 0 representing: () voting shares, accounting for: M
of the tatal number of voting shares present af the meeting.

v Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting
for: 0% of the total number of voting shares present af the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing (0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
% Thus: Content 2 has been approved with a rate of 100%.

3. Content 3: Report of the independent Board of Directors member in
2024

¥ Voting Results
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of vating shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
« Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accownting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares present at the meeling,
v Total number of ballots against: (1 representing: 1) voting shares, accounting for: (%
of the total mumber of voting shares present af the meeting.
« Total number of ballois with nio opinion: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting
Jor: 0% of the total number of voting shares preseni al the meeting.

Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting,
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¥ Thus: Content 3 has been approved with a rate of 100%.

4, Content 4: Audited financial statements for 2024

¥ Voting Resulls
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
. Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 veting shares,
accounting for: 100% af the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
o Total number of ballots against: 0 representing: () voting shares, accounting for: 0%
of the total number of voting shares present af the meeling.
« Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voling shares, accounting
fow: 0% of the total number of vating shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the mecting.
¥ Thus: Content 4 has been approved with a rate of 100%.

5. Content 5: Report on the activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024
# Voting Results
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
« Total number of ballots in faver: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voling shares present at the meeting.
s Total mumber of ballots against: () representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0%
af the total number of voting shares present af the meefing,

« Total number of ballots with no optnion: [, represeniing ) voling shares, accounfing
Jor: 0% of the total number of voting shares present al the meefing.

Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting,
¥ Thus; Content 5 has been approved with a rate of 100%.

6. Content 6: Proposal for profit distribution and appropriation of funds in

2024
¥ Voting Results

Total numbet of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of sharcholders attending the meeting, of which:

o Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11065812 voting shares,
ecounting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting,

v Total mamber of ballots against: 0 represeniing: () vating shares, accounting for: 0%
of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

o Total number of ballots with no opinion: (), representing () voting shares, accounting
for: 0% of the total number of voting shares present at he meeling.

PoA Minutes of the Annual Gemeral Meeting of Shareholders n 2023 Paoge 8774

il



Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing (0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

% Thus: Content 6 was approved with a rate of 100%,

7. Content 7: Submission for the 2025 productio
# Voting Results
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which;
« Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% aof the iotal number of voting shares present at the meeting.
s Total number of ballots against: 0 representing: ) voting shares, accounting for: 0%
of the total number of voting shaves present at the meeting.
o Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accouniing
for: 0% af the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing (0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
¥ Thus: Content 7 was approved with a rate of 100%.

8. Content 8: Submission for the 2025 profit distribution _plan_and

appropriation of funds
¥ Voting Results

Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of sharcholders attending the meeting, of which:
« Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
aecounting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares present al the meeting.
o Total number of ballots against: () representing: 0 voting shares, accounling Jor: %%
of the total member of voting shares present at the meefing.
o Total number of ballots with no opinion: (), representing (0 voting shaves, accounfing
for: 0% of the total number of voting shares present al the meeling.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing () voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting,

% Thus: Content & was approved with a rate of 100%.

9. Content 9: Submission for salaries and remuneration of the Board of

Directors, Supervisory Board, and Management Board in 2025
¥ Voting Results
Total number of valid ballots; 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 1{0%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
o Total number of ballats in faver: 27 representing: 11065812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares presen! at the meeting.
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« Total mmber of ballots against: 0 representing: (1 voting shares, accounting for: (%
of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
o Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting
fow: 0% af the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

% Thus: Content 9 was approved with a rate of 100%,

10.Content 10: Submission for selecting the auditing company for the 2023

financial statements
F Voting Results

Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of sharcholders attending the meeting, of which:
o Total number of ballots in fovor: 27 representing: 11065812 voting shares,
accounting for; 100% of the total number of voting shares present al the meeting,
« Total number of ballots against: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for: (%
of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
« Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voting shares, aceounting
for: (%% of the total number af voting shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

% Thus: Content 10 has been approved with a rate of 100%,

11.Content 11: Submission for approval of transactions between the

Company and related parties of shareholders owning from 51% of the
total number of voting shares or more.
Number of ballots with voting rights; 22 representing: 109,308 voting shares, accounting for:
(.99% of the total number of voting shares of sharcholders atlending the meeting,
Number of ballots without voting rights: 5 representing: 10,956,504 voting shares, accounting
for: 99.01% of the total number of voting shares of sharcholders attending the meeting,
Parties without voting rights due to related interests include: Vietnam Steel Corporation —
JSC, Da Nang Steel J5C
% Voting results (alter excluding the voting rights of parties with related
interests):
Total number of valid ballots: 22 representing: 109,308 voting shares, accounting for: 10(%
of the total number of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting, in which:

o Total number of ballots in faver: 22 representing: 109,308 voting shaves, accounting
for: 100% of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting,

« Total number of ballots againsi; 0 representing: (! voting shares, accounting for: 0%
of the total number af voting shares present at the meeting,
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«  Total number of hallots with no opinion: 0 representing: () voting shares, accounting
for: 0% of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
¥ Thus: Content 11 has been approved with a rate of 100%.

12.Content 12: Submission for approval of the dismissal of members of the
Company's Board of Directors for the term of 2023 — 2028,
¥ Voting Results
Total number of valid ballots; 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
. Total number of balloty in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares present al the meeting,
s« Total number of ballotr against: (| representing: 0 voting shares, accounling Jar: 0%
of the total munber of voting shaver present af (he meefing.
o Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing () volting shares, accounting
for: 0% of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing (0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting,
% Thus: Content 12 has been approved with a rate of 100%.

13.Content 13: Submission for approval of the additional election of members i
of the Company's Board of Directors for the term of 2023-20128, f}f
¥ Voling results 13/
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100% Ll.l :ﬁl'._
of the total number of vating shares, of sharcholders attending the meeting, of which: H:lg

« Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for; 100% of the total mumber of voting shares present at the meeting.
« Total number of ballots against: 0 represeniing: 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0%
of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
o Total number of ballots with no opinion: ), representing (0 voting shares, accounting
for: 0% of the total rumber of voting shares present at the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
¥ Thus; Content 13 was approved with a rate of 100%.

14.Content 14: Submission for the dismissal of members of the Company's
Board of Supervisors for the term of 2023 — 2028,
¥ Voling results
Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the meeting, of which:
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« Total number of ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voiing shares present at the meeting.
o Total number of ballots against: () representing: 0 voting shares, accounting Jor: 0%
of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
v Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voling shares, accounling
for: %% of the total number af voting shares present at the meeting,
Total number of invalid ballots: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting,

% Thus: Content 14 was approved with a rate of 100%,

15.Content 15: Submission for the election of additional members to the

Company's Board of Supervisors for the term of 2023-2028.
# Voting results

Total number of valid ballots: 27 representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 100%
of the total number of voting shares, of shareholders attending the mecting, of which:

« Total number of ballots in faver: 27 representing: 11,065,812 veiing shares,
accounting for: 100% of the total number of voting shares present at the meeting,

» Total number of ballots against; 0 representing: 0 voting shares, aceounting for: (%
of the total mumber of voling shares present at the meeting.
« Total number of ballots with no opinion: 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting
for: 0% of the total number of voting shares present af the meeting.
Total number of invalid ballots; 0, representing 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0% of the
total number of voting shares present at the meeting.
% Thus: Content 15 was approved with a rate of 100%.

PART V: ELECTION

Presentation of the Regulations on nomination, candidacy, and election of additional
members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors for the term of 2023-2028,
Ms. Truong Thi Kim Anh: On behalf of the Vote Counting Committee, presented the
Regulations on nomination, candidacy, and election of additional members of the Board of
Directors and Board of Supervisors for the term of 2023-2028 at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Sharcholders.

The General Meeting conducted a public vote and unanimously approved the Election
Regulations with 100% agreement.

Detailed voting results for the content: Regulations on nomination, candidacy, and
clection of additional members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors for
the term of 2023-2028 at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders:

From the opening time until 10:15 AM, the number of delegates attending the General
Meeting: 27 delcgates, representing 11,065,812 voting ballot, accounting for 72.8622% of the
total vating ballot of all shareholders with voting rights.

Voting results:
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Total number of valid voting ballois: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting
for: 100% based on the total number of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting,
in which:

+ Total number of voting ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% based on the total number of voting shares present al the meeting.

« Total number of voting ballots against: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for: 0%
based on the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

» Total number of voting ballots with no opinion: 0 representing: O voting shares, accounting
for: 0% based on the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

Total number of invalid voting ballots: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for: 1%

based on the total number of voting shares present at the meeting.

PART VI: ELECTION RESULTS FOR ADDITIONAL MEMBER OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBER THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE TERM 2023 - 2028

i. Election of additional members of the Board of Directors of the Company for
the term 2023-2028 and election of the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company.

List of candidates participating in the election of additional Members of the Board
of Directors of the Company for the term 2023-2028 (list and resume attached).
¥ Result

MName Candidacy Number of Election

position voles Percentage

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Nguyen Phu Duong BOD Member 11.065.812 100

Mr. Duong Van Ha BOD Member 11.065.812 1%

Mr. Nguyen Phu Duong, Duong Van Ha were elected as members of the Board of Dircctors
of the Company for the term 2023-2028,

2. Election of additional members of the Board of Supervisors of the Company
for the term 2023-2028 and election of the Head of the Board of Supervisors of

the Company.
[ist of candidates participating in the election of additional member the Board of

Supervisors of the Company for the term 2023-2028 (list and resume attached).
# Result
Name Candidacy Number of Election

position voles Percentage

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Mz, Ngo Thi Minh Neuyet Member of the 11.065.812 100%
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Board of
Supervisors

Ms. Ngo Thi Minh Nguyct was elected as a member the Board of Supervisors of the
Company for the term 2023-2028,

PART VII: APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES

By 10:50 AM, the number of delegates attending the General Meeting: 217 delegates,
representing 11,065,812 voting shares, accounting for 72.8622% of the total voting shares of

all shareholders with voting rights.
Presenter: Mr. Ho Duy Khai read the minutes and Resolution

The General Meeting conducted a public vote and unanimously approved 100% of the full
text of the Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the

voting results are as follows:

Total number of valid voting ballots; 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% based on the total number of voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeting, in which:

Total number of voting ballots in favor: 27 representing: 11,065,812 voting shares,
accounting for: 100% based on the total number of voting shares of shareholders
attending the meeling.

Total number of voting ballots against: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting
for: 0% based on the total number of voting shares of shareholders attending the
meeling.

Total number of voting ballots with no opinion: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, \\
accounting for: 0% based on the total mumber of voting shares of .sharehﬂfder.f\l.
atterding the meeting, 7
Total number of invalid voting ballots: 0 representing: 0 voting shares, accounting for:
(% hased on the total number of voting shares of shareholders attending the meeting,

This record is made in 02 copies and stored at VICASA — VNSTEEL Steel Joint Stock
Company.

The General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company ended
11:00 AM on 2025-04-09.

SECRETARY ON BEHALF OF THE PRESIDING

/

Ho Duy Khai

Neguyen Xuan Son
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VNSTEEL

VICASA

VNSTEEL — VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Zone, Street No. 9, An Binh Ward, Bien

Hoa City, Dong Nai Province
Tel: 02513836148 - 3836090; Fax: 0251 3836503

Wehsite: www.vicasasteel.com

No: 03/NO-DHDBCD-YVCA

Bien Hoa, dated 2025-04-09

RESOLUTION
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on 2020-006-17;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL — VICASA Joint
Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of

VNSTEEL — VICASA Joint Stock Company on 2025-04-09;

RESOLVES:

Article 1. Report on the results of production and business activities in 2024 and
orientations and tasks for production and business in 20235

1. - Results of production and business in 2024: Some key indicators are as follows

Percentage (Percentag
Year 2024
Target Unit ;’;121; i % compared ¢ Yo
Plan |Implemented 0 t_h - compared
previous to the
year 2024 plan
1. Production
a. Stecl billet: | Tons | 124,953 110,000 | 103,498 82,83 94,09
b, Rolled steel: | Tons | 94,361 | 98,000 | 81,843 86,73 | 8351
2. Consumption
Rolled ~  stech Toms | o369 | os000| 82508 8808 | 84,19
consumption
Steel billel Tons | 9505 | 29000 19,183 6438 | 9592
consumplion
Ve Billion| , 1,783 1,358 78,72 76,16
VYND
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4, Profit before e

o TN DEOTE Billion|  gagy | 8000 1.047 11,71 13.0;\
VND

5. dividends Yo = - = : 'J

3. Production and business plan for 2025: Some key indicators are as follows

Target Unit lmplemenlﬁl Implemented Plan
year 2023 vear 2024 year 2025
Steelmaking production Tons 124 953 103,498 1 50,000
Rolled steel production Tons 94,361 81,843 105,000
Rolled greel Tons 93,672 82,508 105,000
consumption
Profit before tax Billion "u"]‘-fﬂl 8.942 1.047 5.000

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
to vote at the meeting.

Article 2. Report on the operation of the Board of Directors in 2024

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
to vote at the meeting.

Article 3. Assessment report of independent Board of Directors members in 2024

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
to viote at the meeling.

Article 4. 2024 Financial Statements audited independently

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
to vote at the meeting.

Article 5. Report on the operation of the Board of Supervisors in 2024

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
Lo vole at the meeting.

Article 6. Proposal on profit distribution and appropriation of funds in 2024

[_Hn-. Content Amount {\F_ND}
| 1 | Profit after tax in 2024 1,036,982,948
I_I Accumulated undistributed Profit alter tax as _ut" 2013—[2—31_ 4,&05,393_,5 #3
3 | Accumulated Profit after tax as of 2024-12-31 5,042,286,531
4 | dividends payout of 0% charter capital (charter capital: VND 0
I 151,873,220,000)
VCA_ Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Sturreholders 2025 Prge 276



5 | Appropriation for Bonus fund, welfare fund (10% of Profit 103,698,295

after tax in 2024)
6 | Bonus fund for Board of Directors, Member of the Board o 0
Supervisors and Executive Board I
7 | Accumulated undistributed Profit after tax as of 2024-12- 4 938,588,236
l 31

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
to vote at the meeting.

Article 7. Proposal on the production and business plan and profitin 2025
Production plan:
- Producing billet: 150,000 tons
- Producing rolled steel: 105,000 tons
Consumption plan:
- Consuming rolled steel: 105,000 tons

Business result plan:
- Profit before tax: 5,000 billion VND

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled

to vote at the meeting. 17§
TY
Article 8. Proposal on the profit distribution plan and appropriation of funds in 2025 VAN
= — '.II
Nuo. Content Amount (VNI (AT
| | Profit before tax in 2025 5,000,000,000 f_jg
2 | Profit after tax in 2025 (CIT 20%) 4,000,000,000
1 | Accumulated undistributed Profit after tax as of 2024-12-31 4038 588,236
4 | dividends payout; 0% of charter capital (charter capital: YND 0
151,873,220,000)
5 | Appropriation for bonus fund, welfare fund (10% of Profit 400,000,000
after tax in 2023)
& | Bonus fund for Board of Directors, Member of the Board of £0.,000,000
Supervisors and Executive Board (2% of Profit after tax in
2025)
7 | Remaining accumulated undistributed Profit after tax (for 8458 588,236
relocation investment) _

The General Meeting voted to approve with a rate of 100% of the voting shares entitled
to vote at the meeting.
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Article 9. Proposal on salaries and remuneration of the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors, General Director, Deputy General Director and Chief Accountant in 2025:

1. Salaries of the Board of Directors, General Director, Head of the Board of
Supervisors, Deputy General Director, Chief Accountant:

Authorize the Company's Board of Directors to decide, ensuring compliance with State
regulations and in accordance with the Company's production and business situation.

7. Remuneration of non-executive members of the Board of Directors, Board of

Supervisors:
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors: 6.00 million VND/person/month.

+ Board of Directors’ members: 4.00 million VND/person/month.
+ Head of the Supervisors: 4.00 million VND/person/maonth,
b Supervisors: 3.00 million VND/person/month.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to decide on

adjustments to the remuneration level (if there are any changes), ensuring compliance
with regulations and reporting at the nearest annual General Meeting of Sharcholders,

The General Meeting voted to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voling shares
attending the meeting.
Article 10. Proposal for seleeting an audit firm for the 2025 financial statements

Authorize the Company's Board of Directors to select an auditing unil for the Company's

20125 Financial Statements from one of the following five auditing companies:
1. AASC Limited Company;

Deloitte Company:
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Company;
Emnst and Young (E&Y);
KPMG Company.
The General Meeting voted to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voting shares attending
the meeting.

Article 11: Proposal for transactions between the Company and related persons of
shareholders owning 51% or more of the total number of voting shares.

Approve the contract for buying and selling stecl/steel billets with deferred payment
with related companies of Vietnam Steel Corporation - CTCF (Shareholder owning 65% of the
total number of voting shares of VCA) in 2025, specifically as follows:

Lh e Lk b

[ Content of Expected output in| Expected value
. Cust
i e Contract/ 2025 (tons) (billion VND)
forecast
) transaction
Southern Steel One | Sale of rolled
105,000 1.470
: Member Limited | steel and steel
Company - Vnsteel hillets
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2 Nha Be Steel-Vnsteel JSC SH]EIﬂf steel 15,000 - 20,000 240
hillets
3 Vinakyoei § teel Co., Ltd. Salnlﬂf s.ll:ﬁl 15,000 - 30,000 36l
billets
4 | Kim Khi TP. HCM - “Sale of rolled
5,000 - 30,000 390
VNSTEEL Joint Stock steel and steel 13,000 - 30,
|| Company hillets ,

The General Meeting voted to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voting shares attending
the meecting.

Article 12: Proposal for relieving Member of the Board of Directors of the Company for
the term 2023-2028

The General Meeting voted to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voling shares attending
the meeting.

Article 13: Proposal for additionally electing Member of the Board of Directors of the
Company for the term 2023-2028 (List and resume attached).

The General Meeting voted to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voting shares attending
the meeting.

Article 14: Proposal for relieving Member of the Supervisory Board of the Company for
the term 2023-2028.

The General Meeting voted to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voting shares attending
the meeting.

Article 15: Proposal for additionally electing Member of the Supervisory Board of the
Company for the term 2023-2028 (List and resume attached).

The General Meeting voled to approve with a 100% approval rate of the voting shares attending
the meehing.

Article 16: Results of additional election of Board of Directors’ members of the Company
for the term 2023-2028 are as follows:

¥ Result: The additional election of Member of the Board of Directors of the Company
for the term 2023-2028 includes: Mr. Nguyen Phu Duong and Mr. Duong Van Ha

Article 17: Results of additional election of Supervisory Board members of the Company
for the term 2023-2028 are as follows:

% Result: The additional election of Supervisory Board members of the Company for
the term 2023-202%8 includes: Ms. Ngo Thi Minh Nguyet

Article 18. The General Mecting agrees to assign the Board of Directors and the General

Director to be responsible for implementing the contents approved by the General
Meeting on the basis of complying with the laws of the State and the Company's charter

of organization and operation.
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Article 19. Assign the Board of Supervisors the responsibility of supervising and
inspecting the activities of the Board of Directors and the General Director in
implementing the Resolution of the Congress to ensure compliance with the law and the
Company's Charter.

This Resolution was unanimously approved in full by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in 2025 and takes effect from the date of signing./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
%EﬂD-_ Mﬂm‘ﬁ:{t the Board of MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
SUPETYVISOTS O CITPAny.,

" BOD of YNS; CHAIRMAN

- Bhareholders;

- Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange;
- File: BOD of the Company.

Nguyen Xuan Son
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VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: Mo, @ Street, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City,
Dong Mai Province
Tel: 0251.3836148; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email: vicasasteclial vicasasteal.com

A

VNSTEEL
VICASA

DOCUMENTS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY |

2025

Bien Hoa, 09 April 2025




VNSTEEL — VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 9 Street, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City,
Dong Nai Province
Tel: 0251.383614%; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email; vicasasteel@vicasasteel.com

VNSTEEL
VICASA

DOCUMENT LIST

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMFPANY

1. Agenda of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;
. Regulations on the operation of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders;
. Summary report on 2024 production-business activities and the 2025 plan;
. Report on the Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024;
. Assessment Report of the Independent Member of the Board of Directors in
2024,
. Independently audited 2024 financial statements;
. Report on the Activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024,
. Proposal for 2024 Profit Distribution and Fund Appropriation;
. Proposal for the 2025 Production - Business and Profit Plan;
10. Praposal for the 2025 Profit Distribution and Fund Appropriation Plan;

I1. Proposal for Salaries and Remuneration for the Board of Directors, Board
of Supervisors, General Director, Deputy General Director and Chief
Accountant in 2025;

12. Proposal for selection of the auditing company for the 2025 financial
statements;

13. Proposal for transactions between the Company end related persons of
shareholders owning 51% or more of the total voting shares.

14. Proposal for dismissal and supplementary election of Members of the BOD
for the 2023-2028 term (List attached);

15. Proposal for supplementary election of Members of the BOD for the 2023-
2028 term {List attached);

16, Proposal for dismissal of Members of the BOS for the 2023-2028 term (List
attached);

17. Proposal for supplementary election of Members of the BOS for the 2023-
2028 term (List attached);

18 Election Regulations for the supplementary clection of Members of the
BOD and BOS for the 2023-2028 Term.

Rien Hoa, March 17, 2025




Address:

VHMSTEEL

VICASA

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Rien Hoa | Industrial Park, No. 9 Street, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City,
Dong MNai

Tel: 0251 .3836148; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email: vicasasteel{@vicasasteel. com

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS AGENDA

Time: 8:00' — 09 April 2025 (Wednesday)

No.

Time

Content

§:00-8:10

Opening of the meeting, flag salute, introduction of delepates,

B:10-8:15

Report on delegate eligibility verification.

8:15-8:20

Introduction of attendees, introduction and approval of the Presidium,
Secrctarial, and Vote Counting Board.

8:20-K:30

Approval of the 2025 AGM agenda and working regulations.

Comfer! !

3l

B:30-5:45

Summary report on 2024 production-business activities and the 2025
plan

2

B:45-9-000

- Report on the Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024,

- Assessment Report of the Independent Member of the Board of
Directors in 20024,

3.3

Q-00=9: 10

- Independently audited 2024 financial statements,

54

9:10-9:20

Report on the Activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024.

55

9:20-9:35

Praposals!

1. Proposal for Profit Distribution and Fund Appropriation in 2024;

2. Proposal for the 2025 Production, Business, and Profit Plan;

1. Proposal for the 2025 Profit Distribution and Fund Appropriation
Plan;

4, Proposal for Salaries and Remuneration for the Board of
Dircctors, Board of Supervisors, General Director, Deputy
General Director, and Chiel Accountant in 2025,

5, Proposal for selection of the auditing company for the 2025
Nnancial statements;

6. Proposal for transactions between the Company and related
persons of shareholders owning 51% or more of the total voting
shares.

7. Proposal for dismissal and supplementary election of Members
of the BOD for the 2023-2028 term (List attached);

8. Proposal for supplementary election of Members of the BOD for
the 2023-2028 term (List attached);

9. Proposal for dismissal of Members of the BOS for the 2023-2028
term {List attached),

10. Proposal for supplementary clection of Members of the BOS for
the 2023-2028 term (List aitached).

3.6

9:35-09:50

- Discussion and comments from sharcholders.

5.7

Gh50-10h10

- Instructions on voiing on the proposals by ballot
- Voting; Vote Counting Board working.
- Announcement of voting results.

58

Supplementary election of Members of the Board of Directors, Members
of the Board of Supervisors for the term 2023-20128:




Regulations on the supplementary election of Members of the Board of

5.8 10:10-10:20 2 s
l Directors, Members of the Board of Supervisors for the 2023-2028 term.
582 | 10:20-10:35 | Conduct supplementary election of Members of the Board of Directors,
Members of the Board of Supervisors for the term 2023-2028,
583 | 10:35-10:55 | Break and the Vote Counting Board is working,
sB4 | 10:55-11:05 | Announce the election results for the Members of the Board of
Supervisors and Members of the Board of Directors for the 2023-2028
term.
s85! 11:05-11-10 | Members of the Board of Directors and the Members of the Board of
Supervisors for the 2023-2028 term introduce themselves to the General
Meeting,
- Minutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
6 | insings |PReehotes;
’ ’ - Vote 1o approve the Minutes and Resolution of the General Meeting
(Voting card). i
7 11:25-11:30 | Flag ceremony to close the general meeting.




VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 9 Street, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province

VNSTEEL St TFLT ; SR e, B 7
VICASA Tel: 0251 .3836148; Fax: 0251.3836505; Website: www vicasasteel com

Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025

REGULATION ON ORGANIZATION AT
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:

Enterprise Law No. 39/2020/0H 14 approved by the Nattonal Assembly on 17/06/2020;
- Securities Law No. 54/2019/0H14 approved by the National Assembly on 26/1172019;

Decree 1352020/ND-CP Detailing the Implementation of a Number of Articles of the
Securities Law approved en 3171 2/2020;

- Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - FICASA Joint Stock Conpany;

- Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Compariy.

To ensure the success of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of YNSTEEL -
VICASA Joint Stock Company, the Board of Directors hereby establishes the repulations, working
principles, conduet, and voting procedures for the General Meeting of Shareholders as follows:

1. PURPOSE

- To ensure the procedures, principles of conduet, and voting at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Sharcholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Jeint Stock Company are conducted in
accordance with regulations and are successtully completed,

- The Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders represent the unified will of the
General Meeting of Sharcholders, meeting the aspirations and rights of the shareholders and
in accordance with the law.

2. SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY

- Applicable entities: All sharcholders, representatives (awthorized persons) of shareholders,
and invited puests attending the Extraordinary General Meeting of Sharcholders of
VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company must comply with and adhere to the provisions
of these Regulations, the Company’s Charter, and current legal regulations.

- Scope of application: These Regulations are applied to the organization of the 2025 Annual
Gieneral Meeting of Sharcholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company.

3.  EXPLANATION OF TERMS/ABBEREVIATIONS

- Company :  VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company
. BOD :  DBoard of Directors

. BOS :  Board of Supervisors

- Supervisor : Member of the Board of Supervisors
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- Orpanizing Commitiee :  General Meeting Organizing Commitiee

- (M8 + General Meeting of Shareholders
- Delepate . Shareholder, representative (authorized person)
- Mecting + General Meeting of Sharcholders Meeting

4., CONTENT OF REGULATIONS

4.1 Conditions for holding the General Meeting of Sharcholders

The GMS may be held when the number of shareholders present represents 50% or more of
the tatal voting shares.

- In the event that the first meeting does not meet the conditions for proceeding as prescribed
in Clause 1, Article 19 of the Company's Charter, the notice of the second meeting shall be
sent within 30 days from the date of the intended first meeting. The second GMS may be
held when the number of sharcholders present represents 33% or more of the total voting
shares.

In the event that the second meeting does not meet the conditions for proceeding as
preseribed in Clause 2, Article 19 of the Company’s Charter, the notice of the third meeting
shall be sent within 20 days from the date of the intended second meeting, The third GMS
may be held regardless of the total number of voting shares of the shareholders present.

4.2 Conditions for Sharcholders to Attend the General Meeting

Shareholders with voting rights of the Company according to the list finalized on 10/03/2025
have the right to attend the GMS; they can attend directly or authorize their representatives (o
attend. In the event that there is more than one authorized representative as prescribed by
law, the number of shares of each representative must be specifically determined.

4.3 Invited Guests at the General Meeting

- These are the Company’s management titles, puests, and members of the Organizing
Committes of the General Meeting who are not shareholders of the Company but are invited
i attend the General Meeting.

- Guests do not participate in speaking at the General Meeting (unless invited by the Chairman
of the General Meeting, or registered in advance with the Organizing Committee of the
General Meeting and approved by the Chairman of the General Meeting).

4.4 Delegates attending the General Meeting must comply with the following regulations:

Punctuality, polite and formal attire, compliance with security checks (if any), identification
documents... as requested by the Organizing Committee of the General Meeting.

- Receive dossiers, docoments, and papers serving the General Mecting at the reception area in
front of the General Meeting hall.

- Late delegates have the right to register immediately and thereafter have the nght to
participate and vote immediately at the General Meeting. The Chairman is not responsible
for stopping the General Meeting to allow late delegates to register; the results of the vote on
maticrs that were voted on before the delegate arrived will not be affected.

- Set the phone to vibrate or turn it off, and go outside to talk when necessary.
No smoking, maintain order in the General Meeting room.

- Comply with the regulations of the Organizing Committee and the Chairman presiding over
the General Meeting.

MCA — Rudes of Procedure for the 2025 Ansual General Meeting of Shareholders Page 2



In the event that a delegate does not comply with the regulations on inspection or the
aforementioned measures and regulations, the Chairman, after careful consideration, may
refuse or expel said delegate from the General Meeting venue to ensure the General Meeting
proceeds normally according to the planned program,

4.5 Chairman and the Presidinm

- The Presidium consists of the Chairman and the Members. The Chairman of the BOT? is the
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the GMS.

- The Chairman shall preside or authorize another member of the BOD w preside over the
GMS convened by the BOD. In the event that the Chairman is absent or temporarily
incapacitated, the remaining members of the BOD shall clect one of them to preside over the
meeting by majority vote. In the event that no chairman is elected, the Head of the BOS shall
preside over the GMS to elect a chairman from among those present at the meeting, and the
person with the highest number of votes shall be the Chairman of the General Meeting,

In other cases, the person who signs the convening notice of the GMS shall preside over the
GMS to elect a Chairman, and the person with the highest number of votes shall be elected
Chairman of the General Meeting,

- The Chairman has the right to take necessary measures to conduct the meeting in a
reasonable and orderly manner, in accordance with the approved agenda and reflecting the
wishes of the majority of attendees.

- The Chairman has the right to postpone the GMS, which has a sufficient number of
registered attendees, for o maximum of 03 working days from the intended opening date of
the meeting, and may only postpone the meeting or change the meeting venue as prescribed
in Clause 8, Article |46 of the Enterprise Law.

Dutics of the Presidium:

s Conduct the activities of the Company's GMS according to the BOLY proposed program
approved by the GMS;

s Guide the delegates and the General Meeting in discussing the contents of the agenda;
s  Present drafts and conclude necessary matters for the General Mecting to vote on;
¢ Answer questions raised by the General Meeting;
s Resolve arising issues throughout the General Meeting.
- Working principles of the Presidium: The Presidium operates on the principles of
collectiveness, democratic centralism, and majority decision-making,
4.6 Meeting Secretary

- The Chairman of the General Meeting shall appoint one or several individuals to serve as
Meeting Secretary.

- Duties and Responsibilities:
s Record the meeting's content Tully and truthfully;
» Receive Delegates' registration slips for speaking requests;
«  Prepare the Minutes of the Meeting and the Resolution of the GMS;

e  Assist the Chairman in announcing information related to the GMS and notifying the
sharchalders in accordance with the law and the Company’'s Charter;

FCA — Rules of Precedure for the 2025 Annval General Meeting of Shareholders Foge §



e Perform other tagks as requested by the Chairman.

4.7 Delegate Fligibility Verification Commitiee

- The Delegate Eligibility Verification Committee of the General Meeting consisis of 03
members, 01 Head and 02 members, introdueed by the Chairman to the General Meeting.

- Duties of the Delegate Eligihility Verification Commitiee:
e Verify the eligibility and attendance status of shareholders and their representatives.

s The Head of the Delegate Eligibility Verification Committee reports to the GMS on the
shareholder attendance. If the meeting has a quorum of shareholders and authorized
representatives representing at least 50% of the total voting shares, the GMS of the
Company may proceed.

o Participate in the vote counting of other matters before the establishment of the Vote
Counting Committee.,

4.8 Vote Connting Committee

- The GMS clects one or several individuals to the Vote Counting Committee as proposed by
the Chairman of the General Meeting, Candidates participating in nominations or self-
nominations (when elections are held) are not permitted to participate in the Yote Counting

Committee,
- Duties af the Vote Counting Commitlee:

o Disseminate principles, regulations, and instructions on the voting and election
procedures.

s Check and record votes, prepare the vote counting minutes, and announce the resulis;
submit the minutes to the Chairman for approval of the voting and election results.

»  Promptly communicate the voting and election results to the Seeretary.

s Review and report to the General Meeling any violations of voting and election
regulations or complaints regarding the voting and election results.

4.9 Speaking at the General Meeting

Delegates attending the General Meeting, when wishing to speak, must oblain the consent of the

Chairman of the General Meeting. Delegates must speak concisely and focus on the key issues 1o
be discussed, aligning with the agenda approved by the General Meeting, or submit their opinions
in writing to the Meeting Secretary for compilation and reporting to the Chairman.

The Chairman of the General Meeting will amange for delegates to speak in the order of
registration, while addressing sharcholder inguiries at the General Meeting or acknowledging
them for later writtenfother forms of response.

4.10 Voting to Approve Matters at the General Meeting

4.10.1 Principles
All matters in the agenda and content of the General Meeting shall be publicly discussed
and voted upon by the GMS.

- Voting Cards and Ballot Papers are printed, sealed, and delivered directly to the delegates at
the General Meeting (along with the set of documents for attending the GMS). The Voting
Cards and Ballot Papers clearly state the delegate's code, full name, number of shares

owned, and authorized voting rights.
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- The Chairman proposes voting methods for each agenda item for the General Meeting's
approval.
- The voting methods are as follows:

o Voting by raising Voting Cards: this method is used to approve matters such as the
Meeting Agenda; Rules of Procedure at the Meeting; Meeting Personnel; Repulations for
electing additional Members of the BOD and Members of the BOS for the 2023-2028
termy; approval of the Meeting Minutes, Meeting Resolutions, and other matters al the

Mesting (1f any).

o Voting by completing Ballot Papers: this method is used to approve the content of
Reports and Submissions at the Meeting,

4.10.2 Voting Procedures
o Delegates vote to Approve, Disapprove, or Abstain on a matter presented for voting at
the Meeting by raising their Voting Card or by filling in the options on the Ballot Paper
corresponding to the content requiring a vote as prescribed in Section 4.10.1.

o When voting by raising the Voting Card, the front of the Voting Card must be raised
facing the Presidium. If a delegate does not raise their Voting Card in all three voting
sessions for Approval, Disapproval, or Abstention of a matter, they are considered 1o
have approved that matter, If a delegate raises their Voting Card more than once when
voting for Approval, Disapproval, or Abstention of a matter, the vote is congidered
invalid, According to the voting method by raising the Voting Card, the Delegate
Eligibility Verification Board/Ballot Counting Board marks the delegate code and the
corresponding number of votes of each shareholder for Approval, Disapproval,
Abstention, and Invalid.

o When voting by completing the Ballot Paper, for each item, delegates choose one of the
three options "Approve”, "Disapprove”, "Abstain" pre-printed on the Ballot Paper by
marking "X" or "v" in the box of their choice. After completing all the content
requiring voting at the Meeting, delegates submit their Ballot Paper o the sealed ballot
box at the Meeting as instructed by the Ballot Counting Board. The hallot must be
signed and clearly state the delegate's full name.

4.10.3 Validity of Ballot Papers

* A valid Ballot Paper is a pre-printed form issued by the Organizing Committee, bearing the
Company's red seal, without erasurcs, alterations, tears, damage, efc, containing no
additional content other than that prescribed for this form, and must be signed and clearly
state the full name (handwritten) of the attending delegate and submitted to the Ballot

Counting Board before the ballot counting time.

On the ballot, the voting content (Report, Submission) 15 valid when the delegate marks one
{01} of the three (013) voling boxes.

# Invalid Ballot Papers:
e Adding other content to the ballot,
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-

Ballot Papers not in the pre-printed form issued by the Meeting's Organizing Committee,
ballots without the Company's red seal or with erasures, alterations, tears, damage, etc., with
additional content other than that prescribed for the Ballot Paper, ballots without signatures,
or without the full name (handwritten) of the delegate; in such cases, all voting content on the

Ballot Paper is invalid.

4.10.4 Voting Rules

Each common share is equivalent to one voting right. Each attending delegate representing
one or more voting rights will be issued a Voting Card and a Ballot Paper,

As of the record date (10/03/2025), the total number of shares of the Company is:
15,187,322 shares, equivalent to 15,187,322 voting rights.

Matters requiring a vote at the General Meeting shall be approved only when approved by
shareholders holding more than 50% of the total voting shates of all shareholders present at
the meeting. In certain cases, as stipulated in Clause 1, Article 21 of the Company's Charter,
the voling matter must be approved by 65% or more of the total votes of all shareholders

present at the meeting.

Mote:

o Shareholders/authorized representatives with affiliated interests are not entitled to vote on
contracts and transactions with a value of 35% or more (of the total value of the
Company's assels recorded in the most recent financial statements); these contracts or
transactions shall only be approved with the consent of sharcholders/authorized
representatives holding 65% or more of the remaining total votes (pursuant to Clause 4,
Article 167 of the Enterprise Law 2020).

s Shareholders/authorized representatives of shareholders holding 51% or more of the total
voting shares, or their affiliated persons, shall not have the right to vote on contracts and
transactions with a value greater than 10% (of the total value of the Company's assets
recorded in the most recent financial statements) between the Company and soch
shareholders (pursuant to Point b, Clause 3 and Clause 4, Article 167 of the Enterprise

Law 2020).

4.10.5 Recording Voting and Election Results

At the General Meeting, the GMS will approve the Ballot Counting Board.

The Ballot Counting Board is responsible for collecting voting ballots and election ballots.
The Ballot Counting Board will verify the number of votes in favor, against, and abstentions
for each item and is responsible for recording, tabulating, and reporting the voting results at
the GMS,

4.11Election of the BOD and the BOS

The election of additional Members of the BOD and Members of the BOS must be conducted in
accordance with the Regulations on Nomination, Candidacy, and Election of Additional Members
af the BOD and Members of the BOS for the 2023-2028 term, which were approved by the GMS.

4.12Minutes and Resolutions of the GMS

All matters discussed at the GMS must be recorded in the minutes of the General Meeting by the
Sccretary of the Meeting, The minutes must be read and approved before the Meeting adjourns.

5

FCA

IMPLEMENTATION

All delegates, representatives, and guests attending the General Meeting are responsible for
fully complying with the provisions of these Repulations, the curvent regulations, rules, and
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management regulations of the Company, and relevant legal regulations.
- The convener of the GMS has the right to:

Request that all attendees be subject to imspection or other security measures;

L]
» Request competent authoritics to maintain order during the meeting; expel from the
GMS those who fail to comply with the Chairman's authority, deliberately disrupt order,

obstruet the normal progress of the meeting, or do not comply with security inspection
requirements.

- Matters not specifically provided for in these regulations shall be subject to the provisions of
the Company's Charter, the Enterprise Law 2020, and other applicable laws of the State.

These regulations take effect immediately after being approved by the GMS.
On behalf of the Board of Directors

Recipienis: CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF

o, DIRECTORS
= Member of the BOD, Board of Manngement, BOS;

= Archived: Company BOD,

Nguyen Xuan Son
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VNSTEEL

VICASA

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. @ Street, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hea

City, Dong Nat Province
Tel: 0251 .3836148; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email: vicasasteeli@vicasastecl.com

No: 06/BC-HDOT-VCA

Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025

REPORT
ON PRODUCTION-BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024;
DIRECTION OF PRODUCTION-BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

Part |

ASSESSMENT OF THE SITUATION, PRODUCTION-BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024

I. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE SITUATION:

1. World steel market:

The geopolitical conflict situation in many regions of the world continues o be tense,
affecting the process of export and circulation of goods. In particular, the steel export market
is also under pressure as steel prices in China and Southeast Asia continue to decrease, putting

pressure on domestic goods.

2. Domestic market:

The market is sluggish due to very weak consumer demand, the volume of imported
goods from China flooding into Vietnam has increased sharply, causing difficulties for the
domestic market. Finished product prices continue to decline, and price competition pressure
remains a difficult problem for the Company. Competitors with strong financial potential
implement market penetration policies, offering products at low prices and purchasing scrap

at high prices. ..

II. PRODUCTION-BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024
. PRODUCTION-BUSINESS IMPLEMENTATION
a) Implementation of the plan:

Percentage
S Percentage
y Plan |Implementation compared
N Ttem | Unit 2023 2024 in 2024 to tllw to the 2024
previous lam
year P
| Production: |
I |-SteelBillet | Ton | 124953 |10,000 103,498 82.83 94,09
2 | - Rolled Stecl Ton 04,361 [98,000 81,843 B6.73 83.51
Il | Consumption: )
1 | - Steel Billet Ton 29,793 | 20,000 19,183 64.38 95.92
2 |- Rolled Steel Ton | 93,672 | 98,000 82,508 8E.08 84.19 |
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Trillion i
111 | Net revenue YND i,?ES_ 1,783 1,358 T8.72 T 1
Earmings
Before Trillion
v R VN 8,042 £.000 1.047 11.71 13.0%
Taxes L
V | dividends ¥ - = - - -

- Steel billet output reached 94.09% of the annual plan.
- Rolled steel output reached 83.51% of the annual plan.
- Rolled steel consumption reached 84.19% of the annual plan.

- Earnings Before Interest and Taxes in 2024 reached 1,047 billion VND, not reaching
the plan.

The Company's production, consumption, and profit results in 2024 did net meet the
targets set by the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders. However, in very
difficult business conditions due 1o many ohjective factors, achieving the above results is a
very rematkable achievement. The Roard of Directors and the Company's Board of
Management have tried to maintain production, meet the full and timely product types for the
market, and at the same time try to ensure jobs and stable lives for employees.

h. Material management

- The Company has proactively and promptly met the quantity of all types of materials,
supplies, and spare parts for production and equipment repair during the year, The sources of
supply are gradually stabilizing in terms of both quality and price.

- Arange warchouse space reasonably, creating favorable conditions for good
preservation of goods and materials,

- Use 100% domestic materials, increase the use of domestically produced materials, and
support the use of products fiom units within the system.

- Sirictly implement regulations on management, import and export of materials and
finished products.

2. ELECTROMECHANICAL AND SAFETY ENGINEERING WORK

2.1. Main consumption indicators:

: Company's | Implementation

N, Lherm Ut No r|:||[1.I Zﬂri'.-l I]I'u:l 2024

1 |Steclmaking

| |Secrap Consumption at Furnace vt 1.14 1138 |

Total Electrical Ener

¥ Consumption for Steelmaking = me i S

3 |Electrode Consumption kgt 2.18 1.85

IT | Steel Rolling _ -

1 [Metal Consumption 't |.028 1.0278

2 |Power Consumption kwh/t 122 124.2

3 |Induction Furnace Power kwh/t 5 3.2

4 |Hot Charging Percentage % 95 95.10
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a) Steelmaking:

= Power cosis

POWER COSTS
(dong/ton)

[WislidE
0 (0D ol
Q0,00
RULIRE

RS0

BO0.00

750,00
2007 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Noie: From 2023-05-04, eleciricity prices increased by abowt 3%. From 09/11/2023,
electricity prices increased by abowt 4.5%. From 11/10/2024, electricity prices increased by
ahout 4 8%

= Electrode consumption

ELECTRODE CONSUMPTION (kg/ton)

2,43
2.4 2,37

8]

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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b) Steel rolling
- Power consumption (kwh/ton)

POWER CONSUMPTION
(Kwh/ton)

220

00 1939

189,8

180

160

L4100

20

100
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

2.2. Technical work
In 2024, the Company carried out a number of technical tasks as follows:

- Assess the condition of major equipment and thercby take measures to maintain
reliable and stable operation.

- Preventative equipment maintenance and servicing, implemented as planned, is
regularly inspected and monitored, with monthly evaluations and confirmations by equipment
managers and implementing units based on registered work results in the catalog to maintain
continuous production, limit prolonged breakdowns, and enhance equipment operating
efficiency.

- Good coordination between smelting and rolling production maintains and improves
the hot-rolled ingot ratio, with the ingot temperature supplied for rolling reaching over 9500C
by: Adjusting the cooling parameters corresponding to the casting speed, combining the
implementation of cast ingot insulation, reducing heat loss during continuous casting,
bringing stable rolling production, and reducing heating power consumption,

- Strengthen inspection and monitoring of the production process, promptly detect and
address abnormalities to ensure stable and efficient production. Improve equipment,
streamling processes, reduce production costs, and apply off-peak production models Lo
reduce energy costs in the context of difficult product consumption.

- Apply energy-saving measures: Allocate loads rationally to enhance the operating
efficiency of transformers, replace AC motors with DC motors in the rolling mill, replace
high-pressure lighting bulbs with LEDs... to save clectricity. Maintain purchasing low- pnted
materials to reduce material costs in steelmaking while increasing processing proportions,
focusing on increasing the proportion of billet turning in the material to enhance pile weight
and increase metal recovery efficiency, Implement annealing of materials in the EBT furnace,
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maintaining the temperature of the pouring ladle... when stopping production to reduce heat
loss and reduce the fuel consumption for ladle drying when restarting production.

2.3, Investment and Major Repair Work

- Investment Work: None.

- Major Repair Work: In the year 2024, the company implemented several major repair
iects, the results of which arc as follows:

Planned Incurred Difference
t
N Tte Completion Costs ?:xﬂ;;l;.l nd1]|3:1n'.g between
0. m Cost (excluding | (excluding VAT) Settlement
VAT) VAT) and Plan
A B | 2 3 d=3-1
Repairing the bottom of the 100 209 200 109
£ ! | Baw charging bin _ .
Repair of Electrode Arm No, 23 23 17
& 2 of EAF Furnace e |
Repair and reinforcement of ‘ |
3 | the 60-ton workshop in the 250 impracticable
Steelmaking area —
4 | Repair of chopper number 1 600 205 205 =395
Concrete floor repair in the
5 | scrap area next to chopper 450 Impracticable
number 2
Repair of 6MVA - 1
6 | 15/0.27KV transformer, LF 400 Impracticable
furnace
- Repair of the steel l:rar_area 500 Implementzd
(automatic steel counting)
g || Mermeui LR i 300 265 265 .35
pearboxes
Repair of 1.250KVA - ;
240 Mot yet implemented
Y | 22/0 4KV transformer yet i
Repair of 24KV-630A
10 | combined switchgear, 22KV B0 370 370 =230
station
11| Repair of 5,000m3 air cooler 950 Impracticable
Repair of 30MVA -
12 | 110/15KV power source 1,500 592 592 008
| transformer
13 Rep_:air anr.ir dredging of the 400 197 397 3
drainage ditch system B
Repair and leak prevention of 1050 949 949 101
| the production workshop ’
Repair and leak prevention of
15 | material warchouse and 550 525 525 25
finished goods warehouse
Repair of workshop floor and 450 447 447 a
s internal roads
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i Repair of wastewater
treatment system and :
|5 rainwater-wastewater 200 Impracticable
| separation .
| Total 8,640 4,042 4,042 -1,608

2.4. Occupational Safety and Environmental Protection

Development of pre-shift safety briefings for production shifis at all units.

- Organize self-inspections of occupational health and safety al units, documented with
image files,

- Implemented periodic safety training for all employees.

- Implemented the plan for Workers' Month and Safety Month.

- Completed the inspection of equipment with strict occupational safety requirements.

- Measured grounding and lightning protection for all electrical equipment, ensuring
safety before the rainy season,

- Issued two additional safety regulations and four notices reminding about occupational
safety and hygiene,

- Established a facility firc prevention and fighting plan according to Decree No.
50/2024/ND-CP dated 2024-05-10 of the Government. Organized training for the Company's
Fire Prevention and Fighting Team and participated in the Fire Prevention and Fighting
Exercise organized by Dong Nai Provincial Police. Regularly inspected, maintained, and
supplemented fire prevention and fighting equipment, thus cnsuring fire safety and
prevention.

- Development and maintenance of the flood control pump system before the rainy
season to prevent flooding within the company;

- Regularly inspect and maintain the exhaust gas trealment system, wastewater treatment
system, and rainwaler/wastewater separation to meet environmental protection requirements.

- Development and replanning of the industrial hygiene layout,

- Conducted quarterly environmental monitoring; prepared environmental monitoring
reports and wastewater reuse reports as regulated.

- Completed the greenhouse gas inventory.

- Implementing procedures to apply for an environmental permit according to new
regulations for the Company.

- There was one occupational accident in the Rolling Mill, the individual received
treatment, stabilized, and has returned o work.

3. FINANCIAL TASKS

- Prepare periodic financial statements and internal management reports as required by
the Corporation and other competent authorities.

- Prepare reports analyzing various types of expenses such as financial, administrative,
sales... comparing and highlighting the expenses belonging to the departments and workshops
s0 that the units/departments in the Company are aware and propose management solutions.
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- Defer and postpone payments and optimize capital sources to better control financial

cnsts.

- Control the reasonableness and validity of invoices and strictly prohibit units [rom
purchasing invoeices under any circumstances.

4. QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Effectively implemented product quality control. There were no customer complaints
regarding the Company's product quality.,

- Percentage of qualified ingots: 99.89%,

- Percentage of qualified rolled steel: 99.82%.

5, LABOR ORGANIZATION, SALARY, AND TRAINING
5.1. Labor organization and salary:

- Number of employees as of 2024-12-31: 290 people. Average labor duning the year:
302 people/month.
+ The number of emplovees decreased compared to the beginning of the year: 24

emplovees, Retirement: 03 people, job transfer: 02 people, resignation: 19 people.

+ Number of employees recruited during the year: 04 people.

LAO PONG BINH QUAN (ngudi/thang)

430

440

390

240

290

240 = i
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

- Implemented the appointment of 02 officials Lo the position of Deputy General
Director, 01 official to the position of Chief Accountant, 01 comrade to the position of Acting
Head of Planning-Investment-Sales Department, 01 official to the position of Deputy
Superintendent of Rolling Mill, 01 official to the position of Deputy Head of Administration
Department, 01 official to the position of Deputy Head of Finance-Investment-Safety
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Department, 01 official to the position of Deputy Head of Technical Department, and rotated
|1 employees.

- Reviewed and supplemented the personnel plan for the 2021-2026 and 2026-2031
periods,

- Established labor norms and salary scales and developed a salary plan for the year
2024,

- Reviewed and issued the Labor Regulations and the Collective Bargaining
Agreement.

- Reviewed regulations on office administrative expense management.

- Reorganized the apparatus towards streamlining, utilizing the Company's workforee to
replace outsourced service workers to increase labor productivity and save costs for the
Company.

- Ensured stable income for employees under conditions of declining production output.
The average income of employees in 2024 was 15.93 million VND/person/month,

AVERAGE INCOME
(Million dong/person/month)

25,00 -
22,09

2000 | 1704 1704 187 18,07 17.88 1593
15,00

10,00 -

5,00 -

0,00 : | = : &3 '

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

5.2. Regime, training, and commendation
a) Regime implementation

- Implemented vacation benefits for employees: 4,000,000 VND/person, uniform
henefits for employees: 3,000,000 VNID/person. Gifts were given to employees on their
birthdays, Mid-Autumn Festival, gifts for female employees on March 8th, children of
wounded soldiers on the anniversary of wounded soldiers and martyrs on July 27th...

- Purchased Bao Viet health insurance for the Company's employees.
b) Training:

- Continued to deploy and apply the spider web diagram in training for workers, During
the year, training plans were developed according to the spider web diagram [or workers in
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the workshops. In 2024, 190 workers were trained according to the spider web diagram 1o
improve their skills.

- Organized the training course "Organizing the production system according to the
LEAN model",

¢) Emulation and commendation work:

In 2024, the Company awarded many individuals and groups of outstanding workers as
ollows:

- Creative Labor Medal of the Vietnam General Confederation of Labor: 01 person.

- Consider recognizing the title and awarding 215 advanced workers and 55 emulation
soldiers of the Company.

- Certificate of Merit from the Corporation: (1 person.

5.3, Administrative work

- Plan and implement anti-waste measurcs for costs related to the Administrative
Department, such as: Reviewing costs such as guest reception, use of official vehicles, vehicle
maintenance, stationery, and use of electricity and water...

- Medical work: Well implemented the management of health records, medicine, and
medical supplies in accordance with regulations. Monitor the health status of employees and
provide feedback and advice to the Company to arrange work suitable to the health status of
employees,

5.4, Land management work

The total land arca that the Company leases from Bien Hoa | Industrial Park is: 19.7 ha,
used as follows:

- Used for workshops, warehouses, offices, infrastructure, roads, and greenery: 13.2 ha

- In addition, the Company has 185 m2 of land allocated in Long Binh Tan Ward, Bien
Hoa, used for collective housing for the Company's employces,

- During the vear, the Company continued to review and manage the leasing of
warchouses and workshops by signing contracts with 8 units, ensuring the use of warchouses
and workshops in accordance with the Company's regulations and relevant laws.

6. OTHER WORKS
6.1, ISO work:

- Review, update, and develop processes, regulations, and work instructions to
facilitate operational procedures for workers. Issued 03 regulations and 04 work

instructions.

- Inspect the implementation of processes, regulations, and work instructions of the
umnits.

6.2, I'T worl:

Reviewed the application of information technology in departments and units within the
Company. Implemented the transformation plan such as deploying electronic IS0, applying
technology to enhance goods control and security work...

6.3. KAIZEN MOVEMENT
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The Kaizen movement has developed strongly both in breadth and depth, in all areas
from direct production areas to indirect departments, with the participation of a large number
of employees from the Company's leaders to workers. The result in 2024 is that 152 Initiatives
— Kaizen by 100 authors were recognized with a profit of: 8.409 billion VND,

IV. CONCLUSION:

The Company's production, consumption, and profit results in 2024 did not mect the
targets set by the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders. However, in the contex!
of a global and domestic economic downturn due to many objective factors, the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management of the Company have made efforts to achieve
relatively good profits, maintain production, meet market demand fully and promptly in lerms
of product types, and ensure jobs and income for employees. The Board of Directors and all
employees of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company are determined to unite and
overcome difficulties, striving to achieve production, consumption, and profit targets in 2023

PART I1
PRODUCTION - BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

L. MARKET FORECAST FOR 2025,

1. Global Situation

The global situation in 2025 is predicted to be highly volatile and unpredictable,
presenting numerous opporlunities intertwined with challenges. The global economy will
continue to be affected by peopolitical conflicts, and trade wars could escalate further.

Additionally, natural disasters and climate change may cause severe damage to many
countries, including Vietnam.

2. Domestic Situation

Despite persistent challenges and the domestic sleel consumption market not having fully
recovered to pre-crisis levels, improvements are anticipated due to the following factors:
political stability, the commencement of numerous key projects, the government's ongoing
efforts to improve the investment and legal environment, and the initial effectivencss of

solutions aimed at revitalizing the real estate market.

II. PLAN FOR 2025

- Based on the 2024 production and business results and the current production equipment
capacity of the Company;

- Based on the market situation in the final months of the year: Demand has improved but
overall remains very slow.

- Based on the situation of the domestic steel industry: Supply has exceeded demand, and
the increased production of brands such as Hoa Phat; VAS; TUNGHO. .. requires them to

caplure market share, coupled with continued influx of cheap imported steel from countries
like China and Indonesia. Consequently, the market in 2025 will face intense competition,

primarily price-bascd.
- Based on the analysis and forecast of the global and domestic economic market situation
in 2025, VICASA cstablishes the 2025 plan as follows:
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Content Unit 2025 Plan
- Steelmaking Production Ton 150,000
- Steel Rolling Production Ton | 105,000
- Rolled Steel Consumption Ton 105,000
- Billet Consumption Ton 40,000
- Profit before tax mﬂ 5.000

L KEY SOLUTIONS TO ACHIEVE THE 2025 PLAN

To achieve the plan's objectives for 2025, VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company
will implement the following specific measures:

1. Production Organization and Management:

- Units continue to review, formulate, and implement anti-waste plans, with monthly
summary repotts for stricter control 10 reduce company Cosis,

- Focus production during off-peak hours to minimize electricity costs.

- Organize production and monitor technological processes to maintain and reduce
consumption indicators such as scrap, electricity, electrode coal, alloys, and other raw
materials.

- Organize daily inspections and monitor the operation of all equipment under the
management of the workshops to provide timely solutions and prevent sudden equipment
Failures from impacting production (equipment must operate stably to meet technological
requirements during production).

2. Planning — Materials — Business Operations

- Continuously monitor market developments and analyze risks to develop appropriate
production and business plans that ensure effective business operations. Closely coordinate
with the General Corporation's Science and Technology Board and the Steel Division /V/ in
forecasting market trends to prepare reasonable inventories of raw materials and finished
products to meet production and sales demands.

- Find solutions to proactively secure scrap sources to ensure sufficient raw materials
for production,

- Production and sales scheduling plan: Closely monitor market conditions to develop a
reasonable production and consumption plan for each month and quarter to maximize
efficiency and achieve the Parent Company’s production and business plan,

- Accessories and spare parts: Strictly control the quality and price of input materials,
applying technology to manage inventory more scientifically and rationally to reduce costs
for the Company.

3. Electromechanical Engineering, Safety, and Investment Work

1.1. Electromechanical Engineering Work

- Strengthen the development of equipment maintenance, espeeially lor main
equipment, to ensure stable operation and meet produclion requirements.

- Continue to promote the Kaizen movement, especially Kaizens that help reduce costs
and enhance production safety.
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- Strengthen quality management to ensure prestige with customers,
3.2. Occupational Health and Safety

- Review and rectify occupational safety practices, promptly address potential hazards
to minimize occupational accidents: Continue to implement process readings combined with
job development, risk analysis, assigning the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisors
to conduct safety meetings at the beginning of each shift with the teams before starting work,

- Plan and development periodic safety training; conduct inspections of equipment with
strict safety requirements.

- Develop fire prevention and fighting plans and implement fire safety regulations;
cffectively develop flood and storm prevention efforts,

- Continue to elfectively implement, operate, and maintain environmental treatment
systems; and manage environmental tasks. Develop procedures tor applying for
environmental permits according to the new regulations of the Environmental Protection Law.

3.3, Investment Work

Focus on major repair items to ensure stable equipment operation.
4. Finance and Accounting

- Balance and proactively manage capital resources: Work with banks to maintain the
2025 credit limit, flexibly extending the disbursement limit. Review the policy of deferred
payment sales/purchases with customers and suppliers, increasing oceupied capital and/or
oplimizing capital costs.

- Proactive cash flow control:
+ Develop a working capital forecast report, adjusted monthly/quarterly.

+ Develop a daily-weekly-monthly revenue and expenditure and cash flow planning
report to serve short-term financial decisions.

- Coordinate with departments to exploit data and build reports to support business
decisions: Collect and standardize data to enable comparison and analysis by cach lactor
quickly to propose solutions to reduce production and business costs. Especially cost factors,
debt ratios, and inventory status 1o reduce financial costs and inventory devaluation risks,

5. Labor Organization

- Research restructuring departments and workshops for greater efficiency. Continue to
reorganize the apparatus towards streamlining, maximizing the use of the current workforce,
possibly arranging concurrent positions in some locations to improve labor productivity and
save costs for the Company.

- Continue 1o apply spider web diagrams to enhance the skills of direct production
workers. In addition, the Company will focus on improving management skills for officials
of departments, especially voung officials, to meet the Company's future development
requirements.

- Improve employee income and benefits Lo ensure their commitment Lo the Company.

- Review the regulations related to employee salary, bonus, and benefit policies to align
with legal regulations and the Company's current conditions.
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6. Other Tasks

- Continue reviewing and finalizing the reward and penalty regulations regarding
material and energy savings in production; and rewards and penalties for occupational salely
and hygiene practices to contribute (o increased labor productivity and the Company’s
business production efficiency.

- Continue promoting the Kaizen movement, analyzing hidden accident risks, and
preparing work instructions.

- Focus on cffective implementation ol asset proteclion to ensure the safely of the
Company's assels.

- Actively implement the Company's digital transformation plan.

Recipients: GENERAL DIRECTOR
- General Meeting of Shareholders;

- Board of Directors, Board of Supcrvisors;
- Board of Management;

Ngo Tien Tho

VA Report on Production-business in 2024 and Production-business plan 2025 Page 11



VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 9 Sireet, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa
VNSTEEL City, Dong Nai Province
VICASA Tel: 0251.3836148; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email: vicasasteel@vicasasteel.com

No: (/BC-HDOQT-VCA Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025

REPORT
ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

Pursuant to the Company's Charter, the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Mecting
of Shareholders, the Board of Directors respectfully submits this report to the General
Meeting of Shareholders regarding the Board of Directors' activities in 2024, as follows:

I. REGARDING PERSONNEL

As per the voting resulls at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on
(15/04/2024 and the Extraordinary General Meeting of Sharcholders on 18/10/2024, the Board
of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company Tor the 2024-2028 term comprizcs
five Members of the Board of Directors, as follows:

1. Nguyen Xuan Son, Chairman of the Board of Directors
2, Neo Tien Tho, Members of the Board of Directors, General Director
3. Nguyen Van Thoan, Members of the Board of Directors
4. Hoang Ngoc Chien, Members of the Board of Directors
5. Nguyen Bao Giang, Members of the Board of Directors
During the vear, the Board of Directors underwent the following personnel changes:

- 05/04/2024, the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders voted to approve:
Dismissal of Mr, Nguyén Béng Vimng from the position of Members ol the Board of Directors
for the 2023-2028 term: Appointment of Mr, Hedng Ngoc Chién to the position of Members
of the Board of Directors for the 2023-202% term.

- 18/10/2024, the Board of Directors of YNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company for
the 2024-202% term, the 2024 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders voted to
approve: Dismissal of Mr. Huynh Cong Du from the position of Member of the Board of
Directors for the 2023-2028 term; Appointment of Mr. Ngo Tien Tho to the position of
Member of the Board of Directors for the 2023-2028 term.

11, I MPLEMENTATION OF 2024 TASKS
1. Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024;

- The Board of Directors convened quarterly meetings throughout the year. All Board of
Directors mectings were attended by the Board of Supervisors as observers.

- This report documents the participation of the Members of the Board of Directors in the
Board mectings for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2024, as follows:

FH{:,
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Nguyen Xuan Son

Chairman of the Board of
Directors

3/5

Huynh Cong Du

Member of the Board of

Directors
{dismissed on 18/10/2024)

a/5

Ngo Tien Tho

Member of the Board of
Directors
(appointed on 18/10/2024)

Nguyen Dong Vung

Member of the Board of

Directors
(dismnissed on 05/04/2024)

212

Hoang Ngoe Chien

Member of the Board of

Directors
{appointed on 05/04/2024)

3/3

Meuyen Van Thoan

Member of the Board of
Directors

5/5

Npuven Bao Giang

Member of the Board of

Directors

3/5

Through the aforementioned meetings, the Board of Directors issued the following

Resolutions during the vear:

No. Resolution/Decision Date Content Approval
No. rate
Board of Directors' Resolution
A01- 100
| | ONO-HDOT-VCA Eﬂlg?ﬂl on Production - Business Plan “
for Quarter 1/2024.
2024.02 Resolution on organizing the 100%
2 | 02/NQ-HDQT-VCA 02 © | 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders and the record date.
Resolution of the Board of 1 00%
1 2024-04- | Directors’ meeting for Quarter
3 | ORAEHRRIEVEA 16 | 1/2024 of VNSTEEL - VICASA
Joint Stock Company.
Resolution of the Board of o
2 . 1 00%
Directors on the appointment of
; 2024-06- | 02 Deputy General Directors and
4 | UUNQ-HDQT-VLA 03 01 Chief Accountant of
VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Company.
Resolution of the Second 100%
. 2024-07- | Quarter 2024 Board of Directors
5 [ 06/NQ-HDQT-VCA | 16 | Mecting of VNSTEEL -
VICASA Joint Stock Company.
1 074-08- Resolution of the Board of 100%
6 | OT/NQ-HDOQT-VCA Directors on the dismissal of the
09 T
General Director and the
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appointment of the General
Director,

Resolution of the Board of 100%
Directors on the organization of
the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders and the
last registration date.

Resolution of the Board of 100%
Directors approving the Drafll
Documents for the 2024
Extracrdinary General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Resolution of the Board of
=10 00%
9 | 10/NQ-HDQT-VCA Mf;” Disedies st diailesst éf the: |
Chiel Accountant,
Resolution of the Third Quarter 100%
2024-10- | 2024 Board of Directors Meeting
17 of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint

2024-08-

7 | DEMNOQ-HDQT-VCA 77

2024-09-

8 | DO/NQ-HDQT-VCA A

10 | IZINQ-HDQT-VCA

Stock Company'. _
Regarding the approval of the 5
z 2 1O
20124-12- policy for contracts/transactions
11 | 13/NQ-HDQT-VCA )5 between the Company and

related persons of Vietnam Steel
Corporation in 2023,

- Activities of the Company’s Members of the Board of Directors:

+ The Board of Directors consists of four members who do not directly manage the
Company's daily business operations. No single or minority group of members exerts
controlling influence over the Board of Directors” decisions. The list is as follows:

- Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son, Chairman of the Board of Directors
- Mr. Nguyen Van Thoan, Member of the Board of Directors
- Mr, Hoang Ngo¢ Chien, Member of the Board of Directors
- Mr. Nguyen Bao Giang, Member of the Board of Directors

+ The Board of Directors has one member who munages the Company's business
operations:
- Mr. Ngo Tien Tho, Member of the Board of Directors, General Director
2. The Company’s Production - Business Results in 2024

At the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, a resolution was passed outlining
the direction for production and business and assigning the Board of Dircctors to implement
it. The Board of Directors defined strategies and objectives for production and business
development and assigned the General Director to execute and implement them in accordance
with the Board's quarterly resolutions.

Throughout the year, the Board of Dircctors effectively performed its supervisory
function to ensure that the General Director’s management aligned with the established goals,
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directions, and plans. In 2024, the global market experienced numerous complex
developments, and the domestic market encountered significant challenges. Consequently,
the Company's production, sales, and profit results in 2024 did not meet the targets set by the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders. Nevertheless, amidst the general market
difficultics, the Board of Directors proactively developed and implemented appropriate
business strategies and solutions to maintain production, adequately and promptly meet
market demands for various product types, and secure employment and income for
employees.
- Charter capital of the Company: 151,873 billion VIND (As o 31/12/2024).
- The Company’s Profit after tax in 2024 reached 1,047 billion VNI,

- Some specific targets and business performance results in 2024 are as follows:

g Percentag
. 2024 it | %
No. L Unit 2023 2024 Performanc mpa compared
MName Flan to the
[ I}I‘Eﬁﬂ'llﬂ o the
2024 Plan
— year
Production:
{ |- Steel Billet T“:“E 124’92 11[:,1}?] 103,498 82.83 94.09
2 |- Rolled Steel 1‘“;““ 94,361 |98,000 81,843 86.73 83.51
1 F-ntisum]rtlun
| |- Steel Billet '1"“2““ 29,795 {20,000 19,183 6438 95.92
2 |- Rolled Steel T”g““ 93.672 (98,000 | 82,508 88.08 84.10
or | Neirevenne | 2| p795 1783 1.358 78.72 76.16
Billion
py | Profitbefore | VND | g g00 | g 409 | 047 1171 13.09
tax Billion |
Y | Dividends o - T - - =

3. Investment and major repair work

- Investment: None.

- Major repair work: In 2024, the Company implemented several items as follows:

Ratimated Difference
Incurred between
Investment Settlement
Costs Settlement
Mo Item Cosl {excluding
(exeludin (excluding VAT) and
Bl wvam) Estimated
VAT)
Cost
A B | 2 3 4=(3-1)
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Repairing the bottom of the
1 | EAF furnace material loading 104 209 209 109
bin
Repairing electrode arm number :
2 2 of the EAF fumace 3 83 i 17
Repairing and reinforcing the I
3 | 60-ton workshop in the DLT 250 Impracticable
4 | Repairing chopper number 1 600 205 205 -395
Repairing the concrete floor in
5 | the scrap storage arca next (o 450 Impracticable
chopper number 2
Repairing the 6MVA -
6 | 15/0.27KV transformer of the 400 Impracticable
LF furnace .
Repairing the steel bar area
i {automatic stee]l counting) i Impl:m@md
8 | Repairing pearboxes K18, K19 300 265 | 265 .35
Repairing the 1,250KVA - §
9 |45 ﬁ}a 41{5 transformer 240 Not implemented
Repairing the 24KV-630A
10 | combined switchgear at the 600 370 370 -230
22KV substation
1 [Inepai ot 2,000k ik 950 Imptacticable
condilioner
yg: | epssE ROV =L LM Y 1,500 592 592 908
power source BT machine
11 Rlcpajr and dredge the drainage 400 107 197 3
| " | ditch system =]
14 Repair and prevent leakage of 1,050 049 949 101
the production workshop =
Repair and prevent leakage of
15 | material warehouse and finished 550 525 525 -25
product warehouse
16 IR:pErir of workshop Moor and 450 447 147 A
i internal roads
Repair of wastewater treatment
17 | and rainwater-wastewater 200 Impracticable
separalion system
Total 8,640 4,042 4,042 -1,608

4. Regarding remuneration and operating expenses of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Management in 2024;

Mo,

Name Title

2024 salaries |rem

2024

uneration | Total (VND)

d bonus

Nguyen Xuan Son

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

575,168,000
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Huynh Cong Du

- Gieneral Director
{dismissed on
09/08/2024);

- Members of the
Board of Directors
{dismissed on
18/10/2024).

561,355,000

561,355,000

'Ngo Tien Tho

- General Director
(appointed on
09/0872024);

- Members of the
Board of Directors
(appointed on
18/10/2024).

168,245,000

168,245,000

MNguyen Dong
Vung

Members of the

Board of Directors
(dizmissed on
05042024

200,055,500

200,055,500

Hoang Ngoc Chien

Members of the
Board of Directors
(appointed on
05/04/2024)

24,000,000

24,000,000

Nguyen Van
Thoan

Members of the
Board of Directors

60,000,000

60,000,000

Mguyen Bao Giang

Members of the
Board of Directors

60,000,000

(0,000, 000

Vuong Thanh
Duong

Deputy General
Director

487 848,000

487 848,000

Hoang Duc Hoa

Deputy General
Director

{dismissed on
15/04/2024)

206,605,500

206,605,500

10

Nguyen Quyet
Chien

Deputy General

Director
[appoinied on
03/ 20024 )

416,782,000

416,782,000

11

Wu Hoeng Khanh

Deputy General
Director
[appointed on

| 03/06/2024)

429,893,500

429,893,500

e

12

Truong Thi Kim
Anh

Chief Accountant
(dismissed on
200102024

445,408,259

445,408,259

Total

3,491 360,759

144,000,000

3,635,360,759
=

Other members of the Board of Directors in 2024 all worked directly at the Company and
were paid monthly salaries by the Company, so they did not receive any remuneration.
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The sbove remuneration levels were implemented according to the Resolution of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders, which the Board of Directors respectfully reports
for the shareholders’ information.

5. Regarding the supervision of the General Director and the Board of
Management's activities:

- In 2024, the Company's Board of Directors effectively supervised the Board of
Management's activities to ensure that the Company's production and business operations
were conducted according (o the shareholders' goals and expectations. The Board of Directors
always provides timely guidance in response to market Nuctuations,

- In 2024, the Company's Board of Directors closely monitored the implementation of
the Resolutions issued by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders; and properly
exercised the rights and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as prescribed in the
Company's Charter and the Enterprise Law.

6. Corporate governance and listing of shares on HOSE:

- Since 10/03/2021, the Company's shares (stock symbol: VCA) have been officially
listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange. The Company has implemented transparent
information and governance, as well as enhanced the enterprise's value and the ability to raise

capital for future projects.

- Prepare periodic reports and internal management reports as required by competent
authoritics: State Securities Commission; Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange; Vietnam
Securities Depository.

- Successfully organized the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the 2024
Extraordinary General Meeting of Sharcholders.

IIL REPORT ON TRANSACTIONS

In 2024, the Company engaged in transactions with its related parties as follows:

Value
Nao. Content / Related parties {million
S VIND)
I | Revenue from goods sale and service provision 1.016.972 |
1 | Ho Chi Minh City Metal Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 36,583
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
2 | VNSTEEL 725,333 |
3 | Nha Be Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL - 119.979
4 | Thu Duc Steel Joint Stock Company - YNSTEEL #a
5§ | Mechanical Metallurgy Joint Stock Company 216
6 | Central Region Metal Joint Stock Company 50,437
7 | VINAKYOEI Steel Limited Liability Company 84,327
8 | Ton Phuong Nam Company ]
I1 | Revenue deductions 4.161
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company - '
VNSTEEL : 4,161
II1 | Purchase of goods and materials 4.656
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company - i
1 | VNSTEEL 996
2 | Mechanical Metallurgy Joint Stock Company 3,200
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3 | Binh Tay Wire Mesh Joint Stock Company B8
4 | Nippovina joint venture — 359
5 | Vietnam Foreign Trade Forwarding Joint Stock Company 13
1V | Financial revenue ) 18 |
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
1 | VNSTEEL - 7
2 | Nha Be Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL bl
V| Financial costs 10
| Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
| VNSTEEL 10
VI | Sales costs 3,173 |
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
1 | VNSTEEL 4,051
2 | Nha Be Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 31
3 | Thu Duc Steel Joint Stock Company - YNSTEEL 221 |
4 | Vietnam Foreign Trade Forwarding Joint Stock Company 873

Report on transactions between the company, Company's subsidiaties, companies
controlled by the public company with more than 50% of the Charter capital with members
of the Board of Directors and their related persons:

Content / Related = Value (VND Note
MNo. Parties l million)
: Related person of Mr, Ngo Tien Tho -
B Bt 84327 | Member of the Board of Directors cum
I General Director of the Company

Report on transactions between the company and the company in which a member of
the Board of Directors was a founder or business manager within the last 03 years prior to
the transaction.
Content / Related | Value (VND Note
No. Parties million)

Ngo Tien Tho - Member of the Board of
" Directors cum General Director of the
;ﬁﬁ“ﬂﬂ 84327 | Company, and also a Member of the

PR Board of Members of VINAKYOEI
Steel Co., Lid.

IV, OPERATIONAL DIRECTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 2025
1. The Company's planned production and business targets for 2025 are as follows:

Content Unit 2025 Plan
- Steelmaking Production Ton 150,000
- Steel Rolling Production Ton 105,000
- Rolled Steel Consumption Ton 105,000
- Billet Consumption Ton 40,000
- Earnings Before Interest and Taxes Billion VND 5.000
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- It is forecasted that in 2025, the steel consumption market will continue to face numerous
difficulties due to the following reasons:

+ The global economy is still in a recession.

+ Political tensions occur in many parts of the world, including the ongoing Russia-
Ukraine conflict, and political instability in the Middle EastL

+ Trade wars among major countries in the world are becoming increasingly widespread.

To achieve the aforementioned production and business targets for 2025, the Board of
[Directors and Board of Management exercise caution and flexibility in production to maintain
the most appropriate levels of finished goods and raw material inventorics. Maintain
production. ensuring job stability and income for employees and striving for effective
production and business, bringing benefits to investors.

2, Regarding the relocation investment of the Company according to the policy of
Dong Nai Province:

According to Decision No. 324/QD-UBND dated 2024-02-05 of the People’s Committee
of Dong Nai Province on the approval of the Project on converting the function of Bien Hoa
[ Industrial Park into an Urban - Commercial - Service Area and improving the environment,
the Company is subject to relocation in phase 2, to be completed before December 2025,

On 28/06/2024, the Company sent Official Letter No. 21/VB-VCS to the Department of
Planning and Investment of Dong Nai Province requesting guidance and introduction from
agencies and branches in finding a suitable relocation location as well as having specific
support plans for the enterprise to have sufficient information to report to competent
authorities. However, up to now, the People's Committee of Dong Nai Province has not yet
had a relocation support plan.

The Company is continuing to develop a suitable relocation plan to submit to competent

authorities for approval, as well as propose opinions on extending the relocation time to suit
the actual situation at the Company.

Above is the Report on the activities of the Board of Dircctors of VICASA-YNSTEEL
Steel Joint Stock Company in 2024,

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Mecting of Sharcholders for
consideration and approval /.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

Neguyen Xuan Son
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VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 9 Street, Bien Hoa | Industrial Pack, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province

~Fel: 0251.3836148; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email; vicasasteeliflvicasasteel com

Ho Chi Minh City, March 17, 2025

ASSESSMENT REPORT

IN 2024

Pursuant to regulations on Corporate Governance, Independent members of the Board
of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company assess the activities of the
Board of Dircctors (BOD) in 2024 as follows:

1. Regarding organizational structure

In 2024, the Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company had a
total of 05 members, including 01 Independent members of the Board of Directors. All
members of the Board of Directors fully and actively participated in planning activities,
compliance control, stralegic counter-arguments, and ensured good corporate governance
practices in accordance with standards.

2. Regarding the organization of Board of Directors meetings:

- In 2024, the Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company held
4 meetings. The meetings of the Board of Dircctors were convened and conducted
according to the procedures and regulations specified in the Company's Charter and
governance regulations. Meeting notices, records, and documents were fully sent to
members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors o attend the meeting o
supervise and inspect the activities of the Board of Directors and the General Director in
implementing the Company's Resolution to ensure compliance with the law and the
Company's Charter, The contents of the meetings were fully and carefully discussed and
evaluated by the members of the Board of Directors to provide orientations and solutions
that bring the highest benefits to the Company.

Matters related to business development strategy, building management syslems
and corporate culture, inspecting, and supervising production and business activitics were
regularly reviewed and evaluated by the Board of Directors during regular meetings.

- Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors at meetings in accordance with the
provisions of law, the Company's Charter, the Resolution of the General Mecting of
Sharcholders, and business strategics have been approved. Minutes of the Board ol
Direciors meetings were fully recorded with the signatures of the attending members of the
Board of Directors, ensuring the correct form as prescribed by law,

3. Regarding the supervision of the General Director and other members of the
Board of Management:

- The Board of Directors has done a good job of supervising the management of the
General Director and members of the Board of Management. Members of the Board of
Directors holding positions in the Board of Management regularly attended regular and

unscheduled summary meetings within the Company, thereby allowing members of the
Board of Directors to stay informed about the Company's operating situation. Decisions and
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operating activities of the Board of Management and the Board of Dircctors were well-
coordinated, while making timely and correct decisions and policies 1o complete the

proposed business plan.

- The supervision of the management activities of the General Direclor and members
of the Board of Management is maintained regularly and closely, ensuring that the
Company's operations are stable, safe, and comply with legal regulations.

All levels of management have been proactive in their work and have strived and
determined to perform the assigned tasks to complete the assigned tasks well,

The members of the Board of Directors have also shared their experiences with the
Board of Management and management levels, as well as consulted during regular

meetings.

4. Regarding transactions between the Company and affiliated persons of the
Company; between the Company and internal persons and affiliated persons of
internal persons.

In 2024, the Company complicd with legal regulations on the authority to approve
contracts and transactions between the Company and affiliated persons of the Company,
between the Company and internal persons and affiliated persons of internal persons.

5. General assessment of the Board of Directors’ activities:

- The Board of Directors’ work and activities in 2024 have been implemented,
focusing on the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders and complying with the
Company's Charter, the Board of Directors' Working Regulations, the Internal Regulations
on Corporate Governance, and the Board of Supervisors's Working Regulations,

- All members of the Board of Directors possess a high sense of responsibility, fulfill
their designaled roles effectively, and have proposed numerous solutions and made timely,
accurate decisions in adherence to legal regulations. The Board of Directors also effectively
fulfilled its function of directing the company’s development through meticulous planning,
control, and adjustments of strategic decisions. The Board of Management's decisions
undergo thorough analysis, critical evaluation, and consultation with the Board of Directors
to achieve optimal solutions for the company's benefit.

This is the Report on the Activities of the Independent Member of the Board of
Dircetors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company in 2024,

Respectiully./.

INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nguyen Bao Giang
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

ilders, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Management
LEL - VICASA Joiut Steck Company

. innuniali Statements of VMSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company pregaved on 0F March 2025, as
afiga-ATh to 34, including: Statement of Financial Pozition #s at 31 December 2024, Statement of Incame,
nsh Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements for the fiscal year then ended and Notes to the Financidl

The Board of Managemen® responsibility
The Board of Management [s responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give & true and fair view in

sccardance with Viemamese Accounting Standurds, Vietnameae Comparate Accounting  System pnel - the  stahtory
requiremants relevant to prepasation and presetation of Financial statements and for such intermnl conirol as managoiment
datermines 18 necessary (o enable the preparation of Pinancial Statervents fhat are free from materisl misataiemend, whether

thee Lo franed or esror,

Anditors* responsibility
Our responsibility is to sxpress an opinion an these Fimancial Statemenis based on our asdlt. 'We conducted our andit im

acoordance wilh Victnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with sandords, ethical
requirements and plan and perform the sudit to abitaln reasonable aasurance about whether the Financial Statsments are
free From materia] misstatement.

An audit involves perfonming procedures to obiain audit avidence about the amounts and disclosures in (e Financial
Statements. The procedures selscted depend on the auditar's judgment, inclading the asseasment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due o fraud or error. Tn making those visk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparaticn and presentation of the Finarctal Statements that give a e
and fair view in order te design mudit procodures that are approprinte in the circumstances, bat not for the purposs of
expressing an opinion on the effectivencas of il catity's intcrool conlrel. An andit also includes evalusling the
approgristeneas of sccounting policies uaed nnd the reasomablenesa of acceunting estimates made by fhe Board of
Management a3 well as evaluating the overall presentation of fhe Finuocial Statements,

We believe that the audit evidenee we have oblained is sufficieat ond approprists bo provide a basis for our il opinion.

Andiiors® apinien
In our opinion, the Financial Statemests give o brue and fair view, in nil materinl respects, of the financial pasition of

VHSTEEL - VICASA Joint Siock Company 88 ot 31 Decomber 2004, and of the resulis of it operalion and iss cash flows
for the fiseal year then endesd in accordance with the Vistnamete Accounting Standards, Vieinamese Corporats Acoounting
System and the stamtory requirements relevanl o pecparstion and presentation of Financial stalenenls,

|'-1'.":"=- Company Limdted
, w0 {,_,-—"f —

D Trung Thanh

Auditor
Cettificate of registration for audit practising Cartificets of registration for audit practising
Ma. 1434-2023-002-1 Ma. 4700-2024-002-1

Ha Chi H""#:{EWF H@ﬂ&ﬁ'% (84] 24 36253973 | | Le Phung Hisu, Henoi, Vislmam A& memdar of m indmrindinn sk
gascoom.An HANE i) TOAM ARST 4

R T



Financial Statements

VHSTEEL » VICASA Joint Steck Company
far the Azcal yenr ended as 5t 311272024

Bien Hoa 1 Industrinl Tone, Street Mo, 9, An Binh Ward, Bien
Hoa City, Deng Mai Province

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As ot 3T December 2034
Iy QLA L2024
Code ASSETS MNole L
haini YHND
10 A CURRENT ASBETS 104,871,007 160 244,345 089 965
11 1. Cash nnd eash equivalents [k 18,034,599 441 18,369,443 481
11l 1, Cash 28,034,599 441 16,369,443,48]
130 M. Short-term veceivabies 63,446, 360,1 78 55,213 076,70
121 1. Shortdesm trade recaivablas S 63, 153,385,560 H,106,027,931)
132 2. Shori<enm prepayments bo supplers L 120,714,618 LS, 164,047
126 3, Other short-berm recedvables i 182,250,004 |91 8&4, TOE
140 TV, Inventories " 194,766,173, 064 168,211,256, 495
141 1. Inventories 194,766,173 ,064 168,211,256,40%
150 ¥, Other short-term sssels B,623,674,476 1,541,313,196
141 1. Short-leem prepaid expenses 10 L450,064,295 2,541,313,196
152 2. Deductible VAT 6,521 B4 649
153 5, Taxos amd other récaivables from Sinbe budget 14 151,085,532 =
100 B, NON-CURRENT ASSETS 25,004,356,797 18,305,147,177
120 I1. Fixed nsgels 17,144,721 483 18,065,770,561
221 1. Tangible fixed assels 1] 17,144,721 453 28,065, 770,561
A2E .« Hiztoreal cos IR BIp TS 852 I02 R0 TIS A2
223 Accunmlated deprecialion (A5 67, 904, 360 (A4 P53 045, 280}
240 V. Loug-term assets in progross S75,983 500 575, %83, 500
242 1. Construction n progreas 0% 575,083,500 575,083,500
260 VL Other long-term assete 7,373,651,814 9,663,393,116
21 1. Long-erm prepaid expenscs 10 7,373,651, 814 5,663,393,116
170 TOTAL ASSELS 319,065,363,057 282,650,237,142




VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

Bien Hoa | Industrinl Zone, Swreet No. 9, An Binh Ward, Bien

Hoa City, Dorg Nai Province

Finamneial Statements
for the fiscal year ended as at 31/1272034

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Azar 31 Decembor 2024
feasini )

L2024 01011202

Code CAPITAL Mote L :
VD YD

a0 C. LIABILITIES 127,608 a7 046 0i) 455,887 AGT

310 I Cuorrvent Habilitbes 127,608,% 7,046 00, 455, BET 467

311 1. Short-teem trade payabies 12 47,036,970,3435 597167, TEd

312 2. Short-tern prepayments from customers 13 - 4,344,817,076

313 3. Toxes and other payables 1o State bedget I4 - 2,684.570,518

314 4. Payables to cmployees 10,630,656,767 17,211,833,253

115 5 Short-term accrued expenses I5 7,873,769,665 4,541,113,52]

319 6. Other shost-term payables 16 [474,162,909 1,314,224.5950

320 7. Short-term barrowings and finmee |eass Habilities Il 60,433,591,638 49,285, 520,014

321 B Provizions for short-leem payables 17 4, 701,735,000

T3 9. Haomes and welfore fumd 150,814,722 .

AN D. OWNER'S EQUITY 192,386, 396,911 192,164,349 675

418 L Owner's equity 14 192,356 396,911 192,194,349 675
411 1, Condelbuted capital 151,873, 210,004 151, 873,220,000
flla  Ordimary shaves with voting rights 151,873,220,000 150,873,220,000
412 2. Share Premiism 20,441, 721,380 20,441,721 350
418 3, Development investment fumes 14,908 165,00 14,999, 165,000
4X1 4, Relained eamings 5,042, 284,531 4 B80, 230,205
41la RE acewnuiadad 61 the end of the previeus pear J, (5, 303, 383 (2 400801 635
4218 RE of the curreni year i, 038, 002 848 7205 P30 04
440 TOTAL CAPITAL 319,865,363,957 202,650,237, 142

T

W

fa” CONOTY
(aly] ngH

Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen

[Preparer Agaounting Departiment

Mpuyen Thi Npoc Thanh

Dong Nai, 0F March 2025
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YHSTEEL - YICASA Joint Stock Company
Bien Hoa | Industrial Zone, Streed No, 9, An Binh Ward,

Bien Hon City, Dang Mai Provinece

Finanecial Stalements

for the fiscal year ended a5 o4 311272024

STATEMENT OF INCOME
Feay 2024
Woar 1024 Your 2023
Code TTEMS Moia
YMD Wi
01 1. Hevenues Trom splées of goods and rendering of 20 1,361,915,134 847 1,726,954 606,005
services
02 2, Revenue deductions 21 4,161,082,266 1,292 040,722
1 3. Mel revenue from snles of goods and rendering 1,357, 758,052,381 1,724,562 456,173
af services
11 4. Costof goods sold and services rendeced 11 1,328,119,083,164  1,668,538,536,000
2 5 Gross profit from sales of goods and rendering 29,638,969,417 S6,424,120,174
of services
31 6 Financial iscome 3 1,065,344, 105 233,522,045
32 7. Finangial expenses 24 3,673,206,484 8,898,764,163
i T whick, fnieresl expense 38T 83T & RiG 249 504
25§ Selling expanses 23 12,739,005,135 14,414,018,713
26 0 Cheneral and administralive expenses T 13,244, 604 487 24,492 RY6,. 587
30 10, Net profit from operating aciivities 1,046, 80T 416 4451, 78,756
31 11, Other income - Q0,206,647
32 1% Other expenses =
40 13, Other prafit - G, 66T
s 14, Toiml net prodl before tax 1,046,897 416 040 185,423
2] 15, Cnrent comporalis indome fm eXpensd 7 0914 468 1,651,054 485
52 16, Deferred corporals incoms s expenss -
¢l 17. Profit after earporate income tax 1,036,982,944 7,291,130,934
18, Kasie parnings per share ] 1] 480
" s

Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen
Preperes

Mguyen Thi Mgoe Thanh
Aceounting Deportment




VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

Bien Han 1

City, Dong Mal Province

Industrial Fone, Steest Mo, 9, An Bink Ward, Bien Hoa

Finuncial Statements

for the fiscal year ended asat 31372024

Code ITEMS

it

02

L]
et

as
]
i)

oo

i
11

21

2

J0

33
34
16
41

O

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year 2034
{Tricllrect method)
Year 2024 Year 2023
Mote
VD VYD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PreafTt bafore fnx R e £,042 185,427
Adjreitir ez for
Degpreciation and smortization of ficed assets and 10,921,049,078 14,475,510,052
imvestinent propertics
Provisions (b, 701,735,000 4 671,735,000
Buchange gains / loses from retransftion of (66,500,348} 1,138,705
monetary ieme denominated in foreign curreney
Gaina  losres From investment activitios (150,930,177 (115319.41T)
Interest expense 3,617,829,724 2,509,249, 504
Operating prafit before changes i working 10,666,610,608 16,790,597, 267
el
Increass’ decrease in receivables (14,970,045 247) A2, 157,003,256
Ircrease’ decreage | irvrentaries (26,554, 91 4,565) 27,515,695 850
Increasel decrease in payablea (excluding intessst 31,248,485, 74 2,858 280,963
payable’ corpomie income fax payabie}
Increases decrease in prepoid sxpenscs 3, 386,000,203 4,198 6RT 460
Interest paid (3,626,371,4506) (4, B8R, 503 241}
Cooporate income b pakd {02 54, 48%) (1,366, 550,871}

Deher payments on operaling aclivities

Nt coxh flove from aperating aclivities

Il

I,

i

3.

CASH TLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase ar constrection of fixed asieds and other
fong-term asiels

Proceeds from disposals of fixed ssests and other
long-berm mssets

Interest and dividend received

Net casle floves flrom imvesiling activifies

11 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

i;
2.
3

Procesds from borrowings
Repayment of principal
Dividends or prafils paid to owoers

Mel caxle fTows from finanelng mefivities

Met cush Mows in

the yenr

{715,120,990)
{1,492,322,073)

150,830,177
I5e 830,177

720,253,239, 48
(70%,105,166,724)
{141,962,325)
1,006, 118,209

0,664, TLH, 403

(657, 185,629)
102,593,916,083
(350,000,000
131,040,000
25,112,750

(193,8047,250)

1,0567,259,553,458

(1,170,307,156,19%)

(Llab BT0a25)
(103,189,273,15%)

(785,21H,356)




VHSTEEL - VICASA Jolnt Stock Company

Financizl Statements

Bien Hon | Indugivial Zone, Street Mo, 9, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa for the fiscal year ended as at 31/1272024

City, Domg Mai Province

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Yo 2024
{Triliset mahad)

24 ¥ 023

Code TTEMS Mo Yenr 2 ear 1
¥ WD
&0 Cash and cash equivalents al the beginalng of the year 1H,3a% 443 481 1%, 154, T03,0d 0
6l Eifect of exchangs rate fluciustions 437,558 {55,200}
70 Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year 1] 28,034,509 443 18,369,443 481

[

Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen Meuyen Thi Mgac Thanh
Preparer Accounting Departrment {leneral Director

Drang Nat, 05 March 033
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THE SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happiness

Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025

i) F'tl_.i-:h'
THEP

RT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
E 2024 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the functions and duties of the Board of Supervisors as prescribed by
the Law on Enterprises and the Charter of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock  Company.
The Board of Supervisors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company respectfully

reports the results of the inspection and supervision in 2024 as follows:

A. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (BOS):
1. Regarding personnel and meetings of the BOS:
The Board of Supervisors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company in 2024

included the following members:

2. Content of the BKS meetings:

Mo,

Date

Content

The date The date
becoming to | ceasing to | Number of
T Member of the Board of Position be the be the BOS  [Attendance
Supervisors member of | member of | meetings rale
the Board of the Board of| attended
Supervisors | Supervisors
1 Mr. Neuven Phuoc Hai Chairman | 10/04/2023 4 100%
2 Mr. Nguyen Bach Duong | Member | 10/04/2023 4 100%
3 Mr. Dang Minh Duc Member | 10/04/2023 4 10%

Recommendation

10/01/2024

10/04/2024

Review and assess the
implementation of the Business
Plan, the production-business
situation, the procurement of
assets, investment in
construction, major repairs, and
audit the financial statements for
Quarter 4 and 2023,

Continue to contral the quality of purchased scrap

steel.

Review and assess the
implementation of the Business
Plan, the production-business
situation, the procurement of
assety, investment in
construction, major repairs, and
audit the financial statements for
Quarter 1 of 2024,

Limited.

Mote the overdue debt of Tay Do Steel Company

10/0°7/2024

Review and assess the
implementation of the Business

Continte 1o control the guality of input scrap steel.
In the context of declining consumption, the




Plan, the production-busingss consumption of unbranded wire drawing steel to
situation, the procurement of create more output and maintain income for workers
asgets, investment in should also be considered in balance with the

construction, major repairs, and | effectiveness of production-business activities.
audit the financial statements for
Cuarter 2 and the first 6 months

1171062024 | Review and assess the Continue 1o maintain control over the quality of
implementation of the Business | input scrap stecl.

Plan, the production-business Currently, sales to Chipmong Group have nol
situation, the procurement of incurred any late payments, however, in the long
assets, investment in run, it is also necessary to pay attention to credit
construction, major repairs, and | sales.

audit the [inancial statements for
Quarter 3 and the first 9 months
of 2024,

3. Regarding the activities of the Board of Supervisors:

- Fully participated in the meetings of the Board of Management, provided
opinions and recommendations within the scope of authority and functions as prescribed

by the charter.

- Reviewed and evaluated the activities of the Board ol Directors related to the
implementation of the 2024 plan;

- Reviewed and evaluated the company's production and business activities in
2024 to identify risks, propose appropriate recommendations and solutions for the Board of

Management;

- Reviewed and assessed the implementation of asset procurement, construction
investment, and major repairs in 2024,

- Inspected and reviewed the 2024 financial statements to assess the legality and
reasonableness of the financial data.

4. Salaries of the Board of Supervisors in 2024:

Ulnir: YND
o Salary Remuneration
¢ tal
No. Name PPosition (before DS Tota
personal 2024
| = _ income tax)
| E’;l Nguyen Phuoe | o inan | 418,889,000 ol 418889000
5 |Mr. NguyenBach |\ b0 | 209411308 | 42,000,000 | 341,411,398
Duong

j || 2 R0 Minh Meknber . 42,000,000 | 42,000,000
Total 718300398 | 84,000,000 | 802,300,398

2




The above remuneration is implemented according to the resolution of the 2024
Annuval General Mecting of Sharcholders.

B. RESU F SUPERVISING T TIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT:

- The Board of Directors of the Company has conducted all meetings to review
the implementation of tasks and work plans during the period and set out the next program
of activities,

- The contents of the Board of Directors' meetings are fully reflected in the
minutes of the meetings and there are resolutions of the Board of Directors assigning the
Board of Management to implement.

- The Board of Management has made great cfforts to closely follow the
implementation of the resolutions assigned by the Board of Dircctors and other tasks.

I. Regarding the financial situation in 2024:

Urit: Million VND

1.1 Cash and cash equivalents:

End of | Beginning | Difference EOP/BOF
No. Criteria ?;E?:; Ef Eéﬁzd mﬂu:“ Ratio

A B 1 s 3=1-2 | 4=3/2

A | TOTAL ASSETS 319.965 282,630 37,322 | 13.200%
1 | Short-term assets 294,870 | 244,345 50,532 | 20.68%

1 | Cash and cash equivalents 28.034 18,370 | 9,665 | 52.61%

2 | Short-term financial investments

3 | Other receivables 63,446 55,223 £,223 |  14.89%

4 | Inventories 194,766 | 168211 | 26,555 | 15.79%

5 | Other short-term asset 8,624 2,541 | 6,089 | 239.63%

11 | Long-term asset 15,095 38,305 | (13210) | -34.49%

1 | Long-term other receivables

2 | Tangible fixed assels 17,145 | 28066 | (10921)| -38.91% |

3 | Long-term construction in progress 576 576

4 | Other long-term assct 7,374 9,663 (2,289) | -23.69%

B | TOTAL RESOURCES 319,965 | 282650 37322 | 13.20%

1 | Liability 127,609 | 90456 | 37,153 | 41.07%
| 1| Current liabilities 127609 | 90456 | 37,153 | 41.07%

2 | Non-current liabilities

11 | Owners's equity 192,363 | 192,194 169 | 0.09%

1 | Owners's equity 192,156 192,194 169 0.09%

2 | Other fund

L Current Asset:

End of period compared to beginning of period increased 52.61%. The balance
on 31/12/2024 was 28,034 million VND, of which cash was 96 million VND, non-term
bank deposits were 20,060 million VND, and money in transit was 7,878 million VND,



1.2 Receivables: End of period compared to beginning of period increased
14.89%. Mainly due to an increase in receivables from Chipmong Group.

The balance of receivahles as of 31/12/2024 15; i million YND
- Aceount receivable from customers: 63,153 million VIND
- Advances to suppliers: 181 million VND

- Other short-term receivables; (Advances + Other) 112 million VND

1.2 Inventories:

' Invento [nventor
| Value asrzf Value as if IHT;HHE
Raw materials 31122024 | 31/12/2023 - | Percentage
(Million (Million D“ﬁ“““
VND) VND) _
A I 1 2 I=1-2 | 4=3/2
1 | Raw Materials 64,937 52,806 | 12,131 2297%
2 | Auxiliary materials 17,212 18,463 |  -1251] -6.78%
3 | Fuel 5,236 4,423 813 |  18.38%
4 | Spare parts 7,802 7,993 -193 -2.41%
5 | Tools and instruments 69 79 - =10 -12.66%
i | Steel billet 35,9049 8,576 27,333 | 31873%
7 | Rolled stecl 63,601 75,869 -12,268 | -16.17%
Total 194,766 168,211 26,555 |  15.79%
Comments:

The value of inventorics at the end of the period increased by 15.79%
compared to the beginning of the year, mainly due to an increase in inventories of scrap
steel and stecl billets.

1.4 Other current asset:
End of period compared to beginning of period increased 239.63%, mainly due

to an increase in deductible VAT, The balance as of 31/12/2024 was £,630 million VND.
Details are as follows:

- VAT still deductible is 6,822 million VND,

- Statutory obligations is 357 million VND.

- Tools, spare parts, and expenses with large values used for less than 12 months

that are vet to be allocated to expenses are 1,451 million VND. Details are as follows:
Unit: Million VD

Value to be
TT Tools, instruments, spare parts, costs allocated until
31/12/2024
1 | Consumed tools and instruménts 044
2 | Asset insurance costs 463
| 3 | Other short-term pre paid expenses 39
Total 1,451

2 Long-term asset:



2.1 Major repairs (MR):

Unit: Million YND

: Difference
Estimat
Incurred between
ed cost Settlement
. cost : Settlement
TF [tem (excludi ; (excluding
{excluding VAT) and
i VAT) Estimated
VAT)
cost
A B 1 2 2 4=73-1
| EAF _Furnaf:ﬂ Charging Bin Bottom 100 209 209 109
Repair
5 H:E:]jllﬂtr of Electrode Arm Number 2 of 100 43 41 17
EAF Furnace
Repair and reinforcement of 60-ton :
3 warkshop in the DLT iees 250 Impracticable
4 | Repair of Chopper Number | 600 | 205 205 -395
g | Concrete floor repair in the scrap storage 450 Impracticable
area next to chopper number 2 |
Repair of 6MVA - 15/0.2TKV .
O | ransformer of LF Furnace A Leoprshisbie
. Repair of Il_'n: steel bar area (automatic 500 Implemented
steel counting) .
8 | Repair of gearboxes K18, K19 300 265 263 -35
9 R.t:p-l-ilI' of 1,250KVA - 22/0.4KV 240 Niot Knpletnentad
| * | transformer i
Repair of 24KV-630A combined circuit
¥ breaker at 22KV station Eﬂﬂ_ 370 o a0
11 | Repair of 5,000m3 air cooler 950 Not Implemented
12 Repair of 30MVA - 110/15KV power 1,500 592 592 .G0R
source transformer i
13 Repair and dredge the drainage ditch 400 197 197 3
system il
14 chm.n‘md prevent leakage of the 1,050 040 949 101
production workshop
Repairing and preventing leakage of
15 | material warchouse and finished goods 350 525 525 -25
warchouse = !
16 | Repair of factory floor and internal roads 450 447 47| -3
Repair of wastewater treatment system
4 and rainwater-wastewater separation 200 il mﬂ!e@md
I Total 8,640 4,042 4042 -1,608 |
2.2 Other long-term assets:

Fnd of period compared to the beginning of the period decreased 23.60%, due o

the occurrence and allocation of some tools, spare parts, and expenses with large values
used for over 12 months. The value yet to be allocated as of 31/12/2024 is 7,374 million

VNI, Details are as follows:




Unit: Million YINL

Value yel Lo be

No. Tools, spare parts, Costs allocated as of
3171242024
1 | Tools pending allocation 6,979
2 | Fixed asset repair costs . - 395
Total 7,374
3 Liabilities as of 31/12/2024: 127,609 million VND
- Short-term Trade payables: 47,037 million VND
{Mainly due to debis for purchasing scrap steel and other materials)
- Payable to employees: 10,631 million VND
- Accrued expenses: 7,874 million VNI
» Prepaid electricity: 4,515 million VIND
 Prepaid interest: 4% million VND
s Goods and services not yet invoiced: 3,311 million VND
- Other short-term payables: 1,474 million VND
 Unpaid dividends and bond imterest: 801 million VND
s Dther payables: 673 million YNID
- Short-term loans: 60,433 million VND
- Reward and welfare funds: 160 million VND
4 Key financial indicators:
Mo, Index Unit 2024 2023
| | Nan-current assets/Total assets %o 7.84% 13.55%
2 | Current asscts/Total assets Yo 92.16% B6.45%
"3 | Liabilities/Total capital % 39.88% | 32.00%
4 | Owners' equity/Total capital % 60.12% | 68.00%
3 | Quick ratio - times 0.78 (.84
6 | Current ratio times | 2.31 2.70
7 | Net profit margin/Net revenue % 0.08% |  0.42%
% | Return on Assets (ROA) Y (.32% 2.58%
9 | Return on Equity (ROE) % 0.54% 3.79%
10| Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) VND | 68 480 N

Comments; Compared to the same period

- The proporiion of long-term asscts lo total assets decreased, corresponding to the
increase in the proportion of short-lerm assets to total assets, duc 1o the mncrease
in total short-term assets compared to the same period, while total long-term

assets decreased.

- The proportion of liabilitics to total capital increased, corresponding to the
decrease in the proportion of owner's equity to total capital, mainly due to the

increase in short-term bank loans.



- Both the quick ratio and the current ratio decreased, mainly due to the increase in

short-term debt.

- The ratios of profit after tax to net revenue, profit after tax 1o total assets, and
profit after tax 1o owner’s equity all decreased, mainly due to the decrease in

profit.

- Basic Earnings Per Share decreased compared to the same period due to the

decrease in profit,

2024 business results:

Unit: Million VND

2/ Regarding implementation compared to the same period:
- Net revenue and cost of goods sold in 2024 both decreased, however, due to net

revenue decreasing more than the cost of goods sold, gross profit decreased.

%o
Increase/Decrease
. Increase/Decrease
No. Indicator FY 2024 | FY 2023 m;:lf::ei rt;: D;he e e
p same period
A I 1 2 3=1-2 _ 4=3n
1 | Net revenue 1,357,758 | 1,724,963 (367.205) -21.29%
2 i‘?;‘s of goade 1,328,119 | 1,668,539 (340,420) -20.40%
3| Gross profit 29,639 | 56424 (26,785) -47.47%
4 | costs to sell 12,739 | 14414 (1.675) -11.62%
Selling, General
5 | and Administrative 13,244 24,493 (11,249} -45.93%
Expenses _
Profit from
T : I 13,861 -79.13%
0 operaling activities . ﬁjﬁ_ S E )
7 | Bevenuslom 1,065 134 831 355.13%
|| financial activities
Expenses from
: iRy ! 3,125 -58.71%
& financial activities o 8499 ( :I <
g | R 3618 8 809 (5.191) -58.93%
" | expenses £
Profit from -
p A : B.665 6,056 69 B9
12 financial activities (2,609) ( } !
11 | Other income 90 (90)
12 | Other expenses !
13 | Other profit o) (90)
14 | Profit before tax 1,047 8,942 (7,895) -88.29%
Comments:
1/ Regarding implementation compared to the annual plan:
- Profit in 2024 reached 13.09% of the annual plan (Actual 1,047 million YND /
Plan &.000 million VND).




- Financial expenses decreased significantly due to the decrease in interest expenscs,
partly due to the decrease in short-term lending rates, in addition, the extension of payment
days for suppliers also reduced the pressure of short-term bank loans,

- costs to sell decreased, mainly due to a decrease in loading and transportation
COsls.

- Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) decreased significantly, due
to the provision for severance allowance of 4,761 million VND in 2023 and the reversal of
the salary reserve fund of 4,701 million VNI in 2024,

Excluding the above reversals and provisions, SG&A expenses in 2024 [ 2023 are as
follows: 17,946 million YND / 19,821 million VND, a decrease of 9.46%. Mainly duc to
the decrease in management personnel expenses, outsourced service expenses, meeting and
receplion expenses, and so on.

I1l.  Assessmeni of the fu t of the production-business (a r
2024:
FY Increagerdeorease incm;?ﬂdem'
I'l Index 2024 FY 2023 over th;a ﬂz&m& s
_ _ pet same period
A B | 2 3=1-2 4=3/2
| | Production output (Tons) ] )
1.1 | Steel billet 103,498 | 124,953 | (21.455) 17.17%
1.2 | Rolled steel 81,843 | 94,361 | (12,518) -1327%
;13““f““‘”'“1 roljed 79791 | 92,328 (12,537) 13.58%
= Wutsolrced processed 2052 2,032 20 0.97%
| rolled steel _
2 | Sales volume (Tons)
9.1 | Stecl bilet manufactured o 1651 59 905 (10,612) -35.62%
for external sale | |
2.2 | Rolled steel 82,508 | 93,672 (11,164) -11.92%
;tﬂ?““ra“mm toiied 80,456 | 91,640 (11,183) -12.20%
«AIntRpRroed processec 2052| 2,032 20 0.97%
rolled stecl
Comments:

1/ Regarding the implementation compared to the annual plan:

- Steel billet production output reached 94.09% (103,498 tons / 1 10,000 tons),

- Rolled steel production output reached 83,51% (81,843 tons / 98,000 tons),

- Rolled steel consumption output reached £4.19% (82,508 tons / 98,000 tons).

2/ Regarding the implementation compared to the same period:

- Steel billet production output decreased by 17.17% compared to the same period,

- Rolled steel production output decreased by 13.27% compared to the same period,

- Externally sold steel billet output decreased by 35.62% compared to the same

period.
)



- Rolled steel consumption output decreased by 11.92% compared to the same period.

C.ASSESSMENT RESULTS OF THE COORDINATION OF ACTIVITIES
BETWEEN THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WITH THE BOARD OF

DIRECT GENERAL DIRECTOR, AND SHAREHOLD

The coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors with the Board of
Dircctors, the Board of Management, and sharcholders is assessed as effective, ensuring
independence and continuous regularity. Specifically:

- The Board of Supervisors is fully and promptly provided with documents and
information regarding the management, adminisiration, and business operations of the
Company in accordance with regulations;

- The Board of Supervisors fully participates in regular meetings of the Board of
Directors and briefings of the Board of Managemenl,

- The Board of Supervisors regularly exchanges with members of the Board of
Directors and members of the Board of Management on issues related to governance and
admimstration;

- The recommendations of the Board of Supervisors sent to the Board of Directors
and the Board of Management are seriously considered, implemented, and timely feedback
is provided;

_ The Board of Supervisors has closely coordinated with the Board of Direclors and

the General Director's Board in inspection and supervision to have timely measures to
address existing problems to improve management efliciency.

- During the year, the Board of Supervisors did not receive any petitions from
shareholders.

D.REPORT ON THE EVALUATION OF TRANSACTIONS

In 2024, the Company incurred transactions with related parties of the Company as
follows:

| Value
Nao. Content / Related parties (million

VND)
| 1| Revenue from goods sale and service provision 10169732
1 | Ho Chi Minh City Metal Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 36,583

Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
| 2 |WNMSTERL, A 725.335 |

3 | Nha Be Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 119,979
| 4| Thu Dug Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL > 89
5 | Mechanical Metallurgy Joint Stock Company 216
| 6 |Central Region Metal Joint Stock Company 50,437
| 7 | VINAKYOEI Steel Limited Liability Company 84,327
8 | Ton Phuong Nam Company 5




11 | Revenue deductions 4,161
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
VNSTEEL 4,161
| III | Purc ods and ma 4,636
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
1 | VNSTEEL 996
2 | Mechanical Metallurgy Joint Stock Company 3,200
3 | Binh Tay Wire Mesh Joint Stock Company s
4 | Nippovina joint venture 359
5 | Vietnam Foreign Trade Forwarding Joint Stock Company 13
1V | Financial revenue 18
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
1 | VNSTEEL : 7
2 | Nha Be Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 11
V | Financial costs 10
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
| VNSTEEL - 10
VI |Salescosts _ 5,175
Southern Steel One Member Limited Liability Company -
1 | VNSTEEL 4,051
| 2 | Nha Be Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 3l
;r 3 | Thu Duc Steel Joint Stock Company - VNSTEEL 221
| 4 | Vietnam Forei gn Trade Forwarding Joint Stock Company 873

Report on transactions between the company, Company’s subsidiaries, companies in
which the public company holds a controlling interest of 50% or more of the Charter

capital, with members of the Board of Directors and their related

persons:

TT Content / R_elate:d parties Value (million "FHD} i

MNote

1 | VINAKYOEI Sieel Co., Ltd. 84.327

Related person of
Mr. Ngo Tien Tho -
Member of the
Board of Directors
cum General
Director of the
Company

Report on transactions between the company and companies in which members of
the Board of Directors are founders or managers during the 03 years immediately

preceding the transaction.

4§ Content / Related parties Value (million VNI) Note
Ngo Tien Tho -
1 | VINAKYOEI Steel Co., Ltd. 84,327 | Mcmber of the
Board of Directors




and Genetal
Director of the
Company,
concurrently a
metnber of the
Members' Council
of VINAK YOI
Steel Co., Ltd.

E. RECOMMENDATIONS:
- Continue to maintain control over the quality of input scrap steel.
- Balance between consuming wire drawing steel lo create more oulput and
maintain income for employees with the elfectiveness of production-business activities,
- Note the credit sales 1o Chipmong Group.
This report has been unanimously approved by all Members of the Board of
Supervisors.

ON BEHALF OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

HEAD OF THE BOARID

Wt

L

Neuyen Phuoc Hai



VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION- ISC THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

VNSTEEL-VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY
MNo: 01/ TTr-HDOT-VCA Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025
PROPOSAL

2024 PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND FUND APPROPRIATION

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 592020/0H14 dated 17/06/2020;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 347200 9%0H [ 4 dated 2671172019,

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Company;

- Based on the 2024 audited financial statement,

The Board of Directors respectiully tequests the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders to consider allowing the Company to keep retained carnings as of 31/12/2024,
in preparation for the relocation according to the policy of Dong Nai Frovince.

Rased on the current situation and production and business conditions of the Company,
the Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company respectfully submits to
the General Meeting of Sharcholders for consideration and approval the report on 2024 profit
distribution and fund allocation as follows:

No. Indicator Amount (VND)
1 | 2024 Er_ﬂfit after tax 1,036,982,.948
2 | Accumulated retained earnings up to 31/12/2023 4.005,303,583
3 | Accumulated profit after tax up to 3171272024 5,042, 286,531
4 | Dividend distribution of 0% ol charter capital (Charter capital: 0
151,873,220,000 ViND)

5 | Approriation to the Reward and Welfare Fund (10% of Profit 103,698,295
after tax in 2024) _

6 |Bonus Fund for the Board of Directors, the Board o (]
Supervisors and the Board of Management !

7 | Accumulated retained carnings up to 31/12/2024 4,938 588,236

Above is the Company's plan for 2024 profit distribution and fund allocation,

Respectfully submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025 for
consideration and approval.




VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION-JSC THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY

Mo: 02/TTr-HDQT-VCA

Rien Hoa, March 17, 2023

PROPOSAL
2025 PRODUCTION-BUSINESS AND PROFIT PLAN

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H 14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant io the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/0H 4 dated 26/11/2019;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Company;

Based on the actual situation and the 2024 production-business plan of the Company,
The Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company respectfully

submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review and approval the 2023
production — business and profit plan as follows:

1. Sales plan:
- Rolled steel sales: 105,000 tons

2. Business resulis plan:
- Profit before tax: 5 billion VND

In 2025, global stecl demand is forecast to decline sharply, especially in the Chinese
markel. The production-business situation of the steel industry in general and the Company
in particular still faces many difficulties in producing and consuming products. Therefore,
the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders authorizes the Board of Directors of
VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company to base on the actual market developments to
adjust the production - business and profit plan targets to suit the actual situation.

Above is the Company's 2023 Production - Business and Profit Plan.

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Mecting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF MRECTORS
CHAIRMAN
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Nguyen Xuan Son



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION- J5C THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY
No: 03 /TTr-HDOQT-VCA Bien Hoa, March 17, 20235
PROPOSAL

2025 PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND FUND APPROPRIATION PLAN
To: General Meeting of Sharcholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 592020/0H 14 dated 17/06/2020;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 34/2019/0H 4 dated 26/11/2019,

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Company;

- Based on the actual situation and current production - business conditions of the
Compan.

In 2025, it is forecasted that the production-business situation of the steel industry in
seneral and the Company in particular will face many difficulties in production and product
consumption. The Company must prepare for the relocation investment according to the
policy of Dong Nai Province (finding a suitable new location and relocation investment
capital,...). Therefore, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders authorizes the
Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company to adjust the 2023 profit
distribution plan targets based on the actual market developments to suit the actual situation.

‘The Board of Dircctors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company respectfully
submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the 2023
Profit Distribution and Fund Appropriation Plan as [llows:

LNn Item Amount (VNID)
|1 | 2025 profit before tax 5,000,000,000
2| 2025 profit after tax (Corporale [ncome Tax 20%) 4,000,000,000
3 | Accumulated retained earnings up to 31/12/2024 4 938 588,236
4 | Dividend payment: 0% of charter capital (Charter capital: 0
151,873,220,000 VND) =
5 | Approriation to the Reward and Welfare Fund (10% of 400,000,000
|| profit after tax in 2023)
6 | Bonus Fund for the Board of Directors, the Board of RO, 000,000
Supervisors and the Board of Management (2% of profit
after tax in 2025) - i gy W _}
7 | Remaining accumulated retained earnings (for relocation 8.458,588,236
= investment)

Above is the Company's 2025 Profit Distribution and Fund Appropriation Plan.

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval.
ON BEHALF OF

HE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AMMAN

Neuyen Xuan Son



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION-JSC  THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom ~ Happiness
COMPANY
No.: (4/TTr-HDQT-VCA Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025
PROPOSAL

Re: Salaries and Remuneration for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,
General Director, Deputy General Director, and Chief Accountant in 20235

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/0F 14 dated 26/11/2019;

- Pursuant fo the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA
Joint Stock Compary,

- Based on the actual situation and the 2025 production - business plan af the
Company

The Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joinl Stock Company respectfully
submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders for consideration and

approval:

1. Salaries of the Board of Directors, Head of the Board of Supervisors, General
Director, Deputy General Director, Chief Accountant:

Authorizing the Company's Board of Directors to decide, ensuring compliance with
State regulations and suitability with the Company's production - business situation.

2, Remuneration for non-executive members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors:

+ Chairman of the BOD: 6.00 million VND/person/month.

+ Member of the Board of Directors: 4.00 million VND/person/month.

4 Head of the Board of Supervisors: 4,00 million VND/person/month,

+ Supervisor: 3.00 million VND/persen/month.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to adjust the
remuneration level (if any) to ensure compliance with regulations and report at the nearest
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

Respectfully submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders for
consideration and approval./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Hg_u}ren Xuan Son



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION-JSC THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY
MNo: 05/ TTr-HDOQT-VCA Bien Hoa, March I7, 2025
PROPOSAL

Re: Selection of the auditing company for the 2025 financial statements
To: General Meeting of Sharcholders of YNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 39/2020/0H 14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/0H 14 dated 26/11/2019;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - FICASA
Joint Stock Comparny.

- Based on the proposal and recommendation of the Board of Supervisors on
sefecting the list of audit organizations approved (o awdit the Company's financial
statements in 2023.

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for approval
the list of auditing companics 1o audit the 2025 Financial Statements as follows:

1. AASC Aunditing Firm Co., Lid;
2. Deloitte;

3. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC);
4, Ernst and Young (E&LY );

5. KPMG.

Authoriinge the Board of Directors to select and sign a contract with the audit unit
according to the submitted list.

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders [or
consideration and approval./,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Neuyen Xuan Son



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION - JSC  THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF YIETNAM
VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY

No: 06/ TTr-HDOQT-VCA

Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025

PROPOSAL
Re: Transactions between the Company and affiliated persons of shareholders
owning 51% or more of the total voting shares

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock
Company

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No, 39/2020/0QH 14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/0H 14 dated 26/11/2019;

- Pursuant o Decree  I5520200ND-CP  dated 3171272020 Detailing  the
Implementation of a Number of Articles of the Law on Securities.

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - FICASA Joint
Stock Company,
- Based on the actual situation and cuwrrent production - business conditions of the

Company;

Accordingly, a public company may only carry out the following transactions upon
approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders:

Transactions with a value of 33% or more, or transactions leading to a total transaction
value incurred within 12 months from the date of the first transaction with a value of 35% or
more of the total asset value recorded in the latest financial statements of the Company with
related parties as prescribed in Clause |, Article 167 of Enterprise Law 59/2020/QH14 and
Point b, Clause 4, Article 293 of Decree 155/2020/ND-CP.

Therefore, the Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company
respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval of the deferred payment steel/billet sales contract with related companies of
Viet Nam Steel Corporation (Sharcholder owning 65% of VCA's total voting sharcs) in 2025
until the time of the 2026 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, specifically as follows:

No. Cistotner Name Content of : Expected E‘:pertilzd
(Contract/Transaction  transaction transaction
volume in 2025 Value
- {tons) (billion VNIY)
y | VNSTEEL - Southern Sale of rolled stecl, 105,000 1.470
|| Steel Company Limited steel billets
o | YNSTEEL -NhaBe | gy ofgieel billets | 15,000 - 20,000 240
Steel ISC




3 | Vinakyoei Steel Sale of steel billets | 15,000 — 30,000 360
Company Limited )
4 | VNSIEEL ~HoChi | 1o of rolled steel, | 15,000 — 30,000 390
Minh City Metal :
, steel billets
Corporalion .

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders for

consideration and approval /.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHATRMAN

guyen Xuan Son



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION-JSC THE SOCIALIST REFUBLIC OF VIETNAM
VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK ~ Independence - Freedom ~ Happiness

COMPANY
No.: 07/TTr-HDQT-VCA Bien Hoa, April 8, 2025

PROPOSAL
Re: Dismissal of Members of the Board of Directors for the 2023-2028 term

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/201%;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Company;

- Based on the resignation letter from the position of Member/Chairman of the Board
of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company dated 14/03/2023 by Mr. Ngwyen
Xuan Son, the resignation letter from the position of Member of the Board of Directors of
VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company dated 09/4/2025 by Mr. Nguyen Van Thoan

At the 2023 Annual General Mecting of Shareholders on 10/04/2023, Mr. Nguyen Xuan
Son was elected as a Member/Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Nguyen Van Thoan
was elected as a Member of the Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock
Company for the 2023 - 2028 term. Now, due to retirement, Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son has
submitted a resignation letter from the position of Member/Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company, due to work reasons, Mr. Nguyen Van Thoan has submitted a
resignation letter from the position of Member of the Company's Board of Directors effective
from the date of approval by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

After reviewing the above resignation letter, and based on the provisions of Point ¢,
Clause 1, Article 15 of the Company's Charter of Organization and Operation, we respectfully
submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval ofthe dismissal
of Mr. Nguyen Xuan Son from the position of Member/Chairman of the Board of Directors

of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company for the 2023 - 2028 term; dismissal of Mr.
Nguyen Van Thoan from the position of Member of the Board of Directors of VINSTEEL -

VICASA Joint Stock Company for the 2023 - 2028 term,
Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders for
consideration and approval.
Sincerely.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

| Nguyen Xuan Son



VIETNAM STEEL CORPORATION THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY
No: 09/ TTr-HDQT-VCA Bien Hoa, April 9, 2025
PROPOSAL

Re: Supplementary election of Members of Board of Directors for the 2023 — 2028 term

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of YNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No, 59/2020/0H14 dated 17/06/2020;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/ 2019/0H14 dated 26/11/2019,

- Puwrsuant to Decree 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/]12/2020 Detailing the Implementation
of @ Number of Articles of the Law on Securities;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of FNSTEEL - VICASA Joint

Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of FWNSTEEL - FICASA Joint Stock Company respectfully submits
to the General Mesting of Shareholders for approval the supplementary election of Members of
Board of Directors for the 2023 — 2028 term, specifically as follows:

1. Supplementary election of Members of Board of Directors for the 2023 - 2013
term:

- Number of Members of the Board of Directors to be supplemented: 02 person

= Temm: 2023 - 2028
« Maximum number of candidates for the Board of Directors: Unlimited

Criteria for candidates to participate in the Board of Directors (According to Clause 1,
ﬁ.m:le 155 of the Law on Enterprises 59/2020/QHI4 and Article 275 of Decree 155/2020/ND-

CP and Clause 4, Article 25 of the Company's Charter).

1. Approving the list of candidates for the supplementary Member of the Board of
Directors for the 2023-2028 term as follows:

Mr. Nguyen Phu Duong - Member of the Board of Directors (Curriculum Vitae attached).
Mr, Duong Van Ha - Member of the Board of Directors { Curriculum Vitas attached)

Other matters related to the supplementary election of Members of the Board of Directors
for the 2023 - 2028 term shall be applied according to Election Regulations for the
supplementary election of Members of the BOD and BOS at the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders in 2025.

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharsholders for
consideration and approval.

Sincerely.
HEBDAHJJ OF DIRECTORS
&l u ~HATRMAN

Nguyen Xuan Son
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EMI’I‘AE FOR CANDIDATE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3 PHAN

IR

NGUYEN PHU DUONG

L1 THEP =
el o] | Male
| 3/ ir i 1977-09-13
4/ Place of birth: Hai Phong

5/ ID card/Citizen | date of issue; 2021-04-25
ID/Passport:

031077006553

&/ Natiunal.i[ﬁ.-': Vietnam

7/ Ethnicity: Kinh

&/ Permanent address:

BT 12.09, An Hung Urban Arca, La Khe Ward, Ha Dong District,
Hanoi city.

9/  Company phone
number: 02513836148:
10/ Email address:

Mobile phone number;

11/ Qualification:

Mining Engineer, Master of Business Administration

12/ Experience:

- 11/1999 - 5/2005: Worked at Mineral Mining Enterprise of Dong
Bac Company - Ministry of National Defense (now Mineral Mining
Limited Company under Dong Bac Corporation - Ministry of
National Defense); held the positions of Technical - Safety Staff,
Deputy Head of Technical - Safety Department (2004);

- 572005 - 10/2005: Assistant of Production Engineering
Department of Dong Bac Corporation - Ministry of National
Defense;

- 11/2005 - 4/2007: Head of Technical - Safety Department of Tay
Nguyen Mineral Mining Company under Dong Bac Corporation -
Ministry of National Defense;

- 412007 - 12/2010: Deputy General Director of Nhan Co Alumin Joint
Stock Company - TKV under Vietnam National Coal - Mineral
Industries Holding Corporation (concurrently Head of the project
management board of Nhan Co Industrial Cluster Phase 1, Deputy
Head of the project management board of Mhan Co alumin plant);

- 12/2010 - 12/2015: Director of Nhan Co Environment Construction
and Installation Company - Vinacomin under Vietnam National Coal
- Mineral Industries Holding Corporation;

- 1212015 - 920200 Deputy Director of Dak Nong Aluminum
Company - TKV under Vietnam National Coal - Mineral Industries




Holding Corporation; Member of the Board of Directors of Nhan Co
Environment Construction and Installation Joint Stock Company -
TKV;

- 942020 - 10/2023: Deputy General Director of Vielnam Steel
Corporation-JSC; General Director of Vietnam-China Mineral and
Metallurgy Co., Lad. (from 2020-10 to 2023-10);

- 10/2023 - present: Deputy General Director of Vietnam Steel
Corporation-JSC cum Deputy Chairman of the Member Council of
Vietnam-China Mineral and Metallurgy Co., Ltd.

13/ Current working
positions:

Deputy General Director of Vietnam Steel Corporation-JSC cum
Deputy Chairman of the Member Council of Vietnam-China Mineral

and Metallurgy Co., Lid

charter capital, including:

14/ Total number of shares held (as of 2025-04-09): 3,796,875 shares, accounting for 25% of

+ Capital Representative
of  Vietnam Steel

3,796,875 shaves, aceo wnting for 25 % of charter capiial

| Corporation-JSC):
+ Individual ownership:

00 shares, accounting for (0% of charter capital

15/Commitments to hold {ﬁ'mw}

16/Related
holding shares of the

company:

persons

None

17/ Related benefits Lo
the Company:

Mone

18/ Rights conflicting
with the Company:

Mane

I warrant that the above declarations are completely true and [ bear all responsibility before the law

if there is any error,

Drate 2025-04-09
Declarant

;'B/Mk;

Nguyen Phu Duong
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ﬁhgﬂ ITAE FOR CANDIDATE OF THE BOARD OF D[REETDRS

number: 02513836148;
10/ Email address:

I.-" DUONG VAN HA

rij Genu:ler Male

3/ Date of birth: 1985-06-08

4/ Place of birth: Hanoi

5/1D card: | date of issue: 2025-02-25

DOT085049234

6/ Nationality: Victnamese

7/ Ethnicity: Kinh

& Permanent address; | Cluster 13, Dong Anh Town, Dong Anh District, Hanoi City
9f Company phone | Mobile phone number: 03867699999

11/ Qualification:

Construction engineer, Master of Business Administration

12/ Experience:

12/2009 - 12/2013: Specialist, Head of Bid Evaluation Group-
Market Economy Department of Mechanical Engineering and
Construction Joint Stock Company under Hanoi Construction

Corporation;
- 012014 - 12/2014: Team leader of Construction Team No. 6,

Mechanical Engineering and Construction Joint Stock Company
under Hanoi Construction Corporation;

- 01/2015 11/2023;: Director of Vietnam
Development Co., Ltd.;

- 122023 - present: Specialist of Investment Technical Department,
Vietnam Steel Corporation-CTCP

Architectural

13/ Current working

positions:

Specialist of Investment Technical Department, Vietnam Steel

Corporation-JSC

charter capital, in which:

14/ Total number of shares held (as of 2025-04-09); 2,278,125 shares, accounting for 15% of the

+ Capital Representative
of Vietmam  Steel
Caorporation - JSC):

2 278, 125 shares, accounting for 15% of the charter capital

+ Individual ownership:

00 shares, accounting for 00% of the charter capital




[ 15/ Commitments to hold (I any)

16/Related persons
holding shares of the

company:

None

17/ Related benefits to
the Company.

Mone

18/ Rights conflicting

with the Company:

Mone

before the law.

I warrant that the above statements are completely true; if incorrect, T will take full responsibility

Date 2025-04-09
Declarant

Duong Van Ha



VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION-JSC THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence - Freedom ~ Happiness
COMPANY

No: 08/ TTr-HDQT-VCA

Bien Hoa, March I7, 2023

PROPOSAL
Re: Dismissal of Members of the Board of Supervisors for the 2023-2028 term

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H 14 dated 17/06/2020;
- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 34/2019/0HI14 dated 26/11/2019;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Compary,

-~ Based on the resignation letter from the position of Member/Head of the Board of
Supervisors af VNSTEEL - FICASA Joint Stock Company dated 14/03/2023 by Mr.

Ngwven Phuoc Hai.

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2023 on 10/04/2023, Mr, Nguyen
Phuoc Haiwas elected as Member/Head of the Board of Supervisors of VNSTEEL - VICASA

Joint Stock Company for the 2023-2028 term. Now, due to personal reasons, Mr. Nguyen
Phuoc Hai has submitted a resignation letter from the position of MemberHead of the
Company's Supervisory Board from the date of approval by the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders.

After reviewing the above resignation letter, and based on the provisions of Point ¢, Clause
1, Article 15 of the Company's Charter of Organization and Operation, we respectfully submit
to the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider and approve the dismissal of Mr. Nguyen
Phuoc Hai from the position of Member/Head of the Board of Supervisors of VICASA-
VNSTEEL Steel Joint Stock Company for the 2023-2028 term.

Respectfully submitted to the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Sincerely.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN




VIET NAM STEEL CORPORATION-JSC THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK Independence — Freedom — Happiness
COMPANY
No: 10/TTr-HDQT-VCA Bien Hoa, April 8, 2023
PROPOSAL

Re: Supplementary election of Members of the Board of Supervisors
Jor the 2023 - 2028 term

To: General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock
Company

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/0H14 dated 17/06/2020;

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/0H 14 dated 26/11/2019,

- Pursuant to Decree 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/12/2020 Detailing the Implementation
of a Number of Articles of the Law on Securities;

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint
Stock Comparny.

The Board of Directors of VNSTEEL - PICASA Joimt Stock Company respectfully
submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the supplementary election
Members of the Board of Supervisors for the 2023 — 2028 term, specifically as follows:

1. Supplementary election of Members of the Board of Supervisors for the 2023 -
2015 term:

- Number of Members of the Board of Supervisors o be supplemented: (] person

- Term: 2023 — 2028

. Maximum number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors: Unlimited

- Criteria for candidates to participate in the Board of Supervisors (According to Article
169 of the Law on Enterprises 59/2020/QH14 and Article 286 of Decree 155/2020/ND-CF
and Clause 2, Article 38 of the Company's Charter)

1. Approving the list of candidates for the supplementary Member of the Board of
Supervisors for the 2023-2028 term as follows:

Ms. Ngo Thi Minh Nguyet - Member of the Board of Supervisors (Curriculum Vitae
attached)

Other matters related to the supplementary election of Members of the Board of
Supervisors for the 2023 - 2028 term shall be applied according to Election Regulations for
the supplementary election of Members of the BOD and BOS at the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders in 2025,

Respectfully submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Sincerely.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS




THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

Independence - Freedom — Happiness

AE FOR CANDIDATE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

'_ CONG: TY ‘kﬁ

i o) | NGO THI MINH NGUYET |
Female |
1970.00-01 |
Minh Binh J

5/ 11 Card: | date of issue: 2021-04-24
037179004825

&/ Nationality: Vietnamese

7/ Ethnicity: Kinh

8/ Permanent address:

| Kien Hung, Ha Dong, Hanoi, .

No. 30, Lane 91, Group 14, Military Medical Academy Collective,

—

9/ Company phone
number: 02513836148:
10/ address:
nguyetntm@vnsteel.vn

Email

Mobile phone number: 0588053333 |
|

11/ Qualification:

Engi}num‘- of Post and Telecommunications -Ecﬂnﬂmics, Bachelor of

Accounting
12/ Eapenence; 102001 - 8/2009: Accountant at Lien Minh Design and
Construction Consulting JSC;
- 02009 - 3/2016: Accountant at Power Engineering Consulting and
Trading Joint Stock Company 1;
- 972017 — 08/2023: Accountant at Power Engineering Consulting
and Trading Joint Stock Company 1;
- /2016 - 8/2017: Chief Accountant of MHD Hanoi Joint Stock
Company,
- 52022 - 3/2023: Chief Accountant at Adamas Group International
I58C;
- 92023 - 9/2024: Accountant at VNSTEEL - Hanoi Steel
Corporation,
- 1042024 - present: Specialist of Finance and Accounting Department of
Vietnam Steel Corporation - J5C.
13/ Current working | Specialist of Finance and Accounting D:paﬂmem of Vietnam Steel
positions: Corporation-CTCP

14/ Total number of shares held (as of 2025-04-09): 00 shares, accounting for 00% of charter




capital, including:

+ Capital Representative | 00 shares, accounting for 0024 of charter capital
of Viemam  Stecl
Corporation - ISC:

+ Individual ownership: | 00 shares, accounting for 00% of charter capital

15/ Commitments to hold (If any)

16/Related persons | None
holding shares of the
COMmpany:

17/ Related benefits to | None

the Company:
18/ Rights conflicting | None

with the Company:

1 warrant that the above declarations are completely true and I bear all responsibility before the law
if there is any emror.

[hate 2025-04-09
Dreclarant

="

MNgo Thi Minh Nguyet



Address: No. 9 Street, Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province
VNSTEEL by, Dong Nay

VICASA Tel: 0251.383614%; Fax: 0251.3836505; Email; vicasasteclivicasasteel.com

ﬁ VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bien Hoa, March 17, 2025

REGULATIONS ON NOMINATION, CANDIDACY, AND
SUPPLEMENTARY ELECTION OF MEMBERS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR THE 2023 -
2028 TERM
VNSTEEL - VICASA JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:
- Enterprise Law No. 39%2020/0H14 dated 17/00/2020;

- Securities Law No. 54/201%0H 14 dated 26/11/2019 and its accompanying sub-law
documents;

- Purswant to Decree [155/20200ND-CP dated 31/12/2020 Detailing the
Implementation of a Number of Articles of the Law on Securities;

- Charter of Organization and Operation of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joimt Stock
Camparny,

- Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock
Compeny

The Vote Counting Committee announces the Regulations on Nomination, Candidacy,

and Supplementary Election of Members to the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA

Joint Stock Company, as follows:
I. Explanation of terminology/abbreviations:

- Company VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company

- BOD Board of Directors

- BOS Roard of Supervisors

- Organizer Organizing Committee

- GMS (General Meeting of Sharcholders

- Delegate Sharcholders, representatives (authorized individuals)

II.Chairman of the General Mecting:

The Chairman of the General Meeting is responsible for presiding over the
supplementary election, specifically:

- Introducing the list of nominees and candidates for the BOD and BOS;

- Supervising the voting and ballot counting process;

- Resolving election complaints (il any)

M.  Regulations on the nomination and candidacy of members of the BOD:
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- WNumber of supplementary BOD members: 02 person
- Term: 2023 — 2028
- Maximum number of BOD candidates: Unlimited

1. Right to nominate and stand as a candidate for the BOD: (According to Article
25 of the Company's Charter)

Shareholders or shareholder Clusters owning at least 5% of the total ordinary shares
have the right to nominate and stand as candidates for the BOD in accordance with the Law
on Enterprises and the Company’s Charter. Shareholders holding ordinary shares have the
right to combine their voting rights to nominate candidates for the BOL). A sharcholder or
sharcholder Cluster holding from 5% to less than 20% of the total voting shares may
nominate one (01) candidate; from 20% to less than 40% of the total voting sharcs may
nominate a maximum of two (02) candidates; from 40% to less than 65% of the total voling
shares may nominate a maximum of three (03) candidates; and 65% or more may nominate
a maximum of five (03} candidates.

Nominated candidates must meet all the criteria specified in Section 2 below,

In the event that the number of candidates for the BOD through nomination and
candidacy is still insufficient, the incumbent BOD may nominate additional candidates or
organize nominations according to a mechanism stipulated by the company in the Internal
Regulations on Corporate Governance and the Regulations on Operation of the BOD,

2. Criteria for candidates for the BOD: Candidates for the BOD must meet all of
the following criteria and conditions (according to Article 155 of Enterprise Law
59/2020/(H14, Article 275 of Decree 155/2020/ND-CP, Article 25 of the Company's
Charter, Article 6 of the Regulations on the Operation of the BOL)

- Possess full civil act capacity and not be subject to those ineligible to manage
enterprises as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 17 of Enterprise Law 39/2020/QH14;

- Possess professional qualifications and experience in business administration or in
the company's business sector, field, or profession and not necessarily be a shareholder of
the company;

- Must not be a family member (wife, husband, biological father, biological mother,
adoptive father, adoptive mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, steplather, stepmother,
biological child, adopted child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, biological brother, biological
sister, biological sibling, brother-in-law, half-brother, sister-in-law, half-sister, wife's
hiological brother, husband's biological brother, wife's biological sister, husband's biological
sister, wife's biological sibling, husband's biological sibling) of the General Director and
other managers of the company; of the manager, the person authorized to appoint the
manager of the parent company.

- A Member of the BOD of the company may concurrently be a member of the BOD
of a maximum of 05 other companies.

IV, Regulations on the nomination and candidacy of members of the BOD:
- Number of supplementary BOS members: 01 person

- Term: 2023 — 2028

- Maximum number of BOS candidates: Unlimited,
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1. Right to nominate and stand for election: (according (o Article 37 of the
Company Charter).

Sharcholders or shareholder groups owning from 05% or more of the total ordinary
shares have the right to nominate candidates for the BOS in accordance with the provisions
of the Enterprise Law and the Company Charter. Shareholders holding ordinary shares have
the right to pool their voting rights to nominate candidates for the BOS, Sharcholders or
sharcholder groups holding from 05% to less than 20% of the total voting shares may
nominate one (01} candidate; from 20% to less than 40% of the total voting shares may
nominate 4 maximum of two (02) candidates; from 40% to less than 65% of the total voting
sharcs may nominate a maximum of three (03) candidates: 65% or more may nominate a
maximum of five ((05) candidates.

Nominated candidates must meet all the criteria specified in Section 2 below.

In the event that the number of Member of the BOS candidates through nomination
and candidacy is still insufficient, the incumbent Member of the BOS may nominate
additional candidates or organize nominations according to the mechanism prescribed by the
company in the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and the Regulations on
Operation of the BOS.

2. Criteria for candidacy for Member of the BOS: Candidates for the BOS must
fully meet the following standards and conditions (aceording to Clause 1, Article 169 of
the Enterprise Law 59/2020/QH14; Article 286 of Decree No. 1552020/ND-CF and
Clause 2, Article 38 of the Company Charter).

- Having full civil acl capacity and not belonging to the subjects prohibited from
establishing and managing enterprises as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Enterprise
Law 59/2020/QH]14.

- Be trained in one of the majors in cconomics, finance, accounting, auditing, law,
business administration or & major suitable for the business activities of the enterprise.

- Must not be a family member (wife, husband, biological father, biological mother,
adoptive father, adoptive mother, father-in-law, mother-in-law, stepfather, stepmother,
hiological child, adopted child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, biclogical brother, biclogical
sister, biological sibling, brother-in-law, half-brother, sister-in-law, half-sister, wife's
hiological brother, husband's biological brother, wife's biological sister, husband's biological
sister, wifc's biological sibling, husband's biological sibling) of Members of the BOD, the
Cieneral Director and other managers.

Nol be a manager of the company; not necessarily be a shareholder or employee of
the company.

- Not work in the accounting and finance department of the Company.

. Mol be a member or employee of the andit firm approved to audit the company’s
financial statements in the previous 03 consecutive years.

Other standards and conditions as prescribed by other relevant laws and the
Company Charter.

V. Election Principles:

- Conduct in strict accordance with the stipulations of the law and the Company's
Charler.
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- Woting rights are calculated based on the number of shares owned or represented.
Election results are calculated based on the voting shares of the delegates present at the
meeting.

- For each election, a delegate may only use one ballot corresponding to the number
of shares owned or represented.

- The Vote Counting Commiti¢e is nominated by the Presidium and approved by the
seneral meeting. Members of The Vote Counting Committee must not be included in the
nomination list or be candidates for the BOD or the BOS.

VL. Election Method:

- The list of candidates for the BOD and Member of the BOS is arranged
alphabetically by name, with full names written on the ballot.

- Election Method: (According to Clause 3, Article 148 of the Enterprise Law 2020)

 Implement the cumulative voting method: whereby each delegate has a total number
of votes corresponding to the total number of shares owned or represented multiplied by the
number of members to be elected to the BOD or the BOS.

o Attending delegates have the right to cast all their votes for one or several
candidates,

» Each delegate attending the meeting is given one ballot for the BOD and one ballot

for the Member of the BOS., Upon receiving the ballot, delegates must check the
information printed on it and immediately notify The Vote Counting Committee of any

CITors,

s In case of mistaken selection, the delegate should contact The Vote Counting
Committee 1o receive a new ballot and must submit the old one.

e In case of a candidate change on the day of the general meeting, The Vote Counting
Committee is responsible for issuing new ballots and collecting the old ones (if any) before
the voting ¢commences.

» How to Fill Out the Ballot:

¥ Delegates vote for a maximum number of candidates equal to the number of
members 1o be elected;

¥ If casting all votes for one candidate or distributing all votes equally among
candidates, delegates mark the "Cumaulative Vote" box for the corresponding candidates.

¥ If casting an unequal number of votes for each candidate, delegates clearly write the
number of votes in the "Number of Votes" box for the corresponding candidates.
Note:

I a delegate both marks the "Cumulative Vote" box and writes a number in the
"Number of Votes" box, the result will be based on the number in the "Number of Votes®

box.
- Ballots will be placed in sealed ballot boxes before counting begins.

- Walid ballot: is a ballot printed on a pre-printed form issued by the Organizer,
bearing the company's red seal, without erasures, alterations, or any additional content
beyond the prescribed regulations for the ballot.

- The following ballots will be considered invalid:
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o Adding additional content to the ballot;

e Ballots not on the pre-printed form issued by the Organizer, ballots without the
company's red seal, or those with erasures, alterations, or additional content beyond the

prescribed regulations for the ballot;
¢ The number of candidates voted for by the delegate exceeds the number of members
to be elected;

¢ Ballois where the total number of votes cast by delegates for candidates exceeds the
total number of permitted votes;

* Lacking the signature and full name (handwritten) of the participating delegate,

- After voting concludes, the ballot counting will be conducted under the supervision
of The Vote Counting Committee and sharcholder representatives (if necessary ),

- The Vote Counting Committee is responsible for preparing the ballot counting
minutes, announcing the results, and, along with the presidium, addressing any guestions or
complaints from delegates (if any).

- Ballol papers, subseguent to scrutiny, shall be retained in accordance with
established regulations and accessed upon the request of the company's GMS.

VIL Guiding Principles for Candidate Selection:

- Successlul candidates shall be determined based on the number of votes received,
arranged in descending order, commencing with the candidate sccuring the highest number
of votes and continuing until the requisite number of members is elected.

- In instances where two (02) or more candidates achieve an equal number of votes
for the final position, a subsequent election shall be conducted among these equally ranked
candidates.

- Should the initial election fail to vield the necessary quorum, further elections shall
be conducted until the stipulated number of members is elected.

VIIl. Documentation for Candidacy and Nomination for Election to the BOD
and BOS:

The requisite documentation for candidacy and nomination to the BOD and BOS
comprises:

- Application for candidacy/nomination to the BOD and BOS (as per the prescribed
template).

- Curriculum Vitae (as per the designated format).

- Reproductions of the following documents: Citizen Identily Card/Citizen
Identification Card with Integrated Circuit/Passport.

- Attestations of educational and professional qualifications (if applicable),

Nominators for the BOD and BOS bear legal and fiduciary responsibility to the GMS
for the veracity and integrity of the information presented in their dossiers.

Kindly submit the application to VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company by 15:00
on 30/03/2025 at the following address:

VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company
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Recipient: Mr. Ho Duy Khai — Person in charge of Corporate Governance, Secretary 1o

the BOD.
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park - No. 9 Street - An Binh Ward - Bien Hoa City -

Dong Nai Province

Telephone: (84.251).3836148 / 3835025 Fax: (84.251) 383 6305

Presented above are the Regulations on Nomination, Candidacy, and Supplementary
Election of Members to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Sharcholders of VNSTEEL - VICASA Joint Stock Company,
respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders [or consideration and

approval,

These regulations shall come into effect immediately upon approval by the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
e f the BOD, Members of the BOS DIRELEChes

= Members of the . Members of the i

- BHoard of General Drirectors; CHAIRMAN

- Archived: BOD.

Nguyen Xuan Son
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